




NOTICE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN 20 Annual General Meeting KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED

Thursday the 11 Day of August, 2016 at 05:00 P.M.

1.

March 31, 2016.

2.

3.

4.

“RESOLVED THAT

5. Ratification of Remuneration to Cost Auditor.

that the of the Members of will be held

on at Corporate Support Center of the company situated at 4 Floor

Chetak Chambers, 14 R. N. T. Marg, Indore (M.P.) - 452001 to transact the following businesses:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Statement of Accounts together with Directors Report as also the Auditors

Report thereon for the year ended

To confirm the payment of Interim Dividend of Rs. 0.12 per Equity Share.

To appoint a Director in place of Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta (DIN 00023591), who is liable to retire by rotation, and being

eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

pursuant to Section 139(2) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules

made there under, M/s R. S. Bansal and Company, Chartered Accountants (FRN 000939C) the retiring auditor be and are

hereby appointed as Auditors of the Company for the further term of five years from 1 April, 2016 to 31 March, 2021

and to hold the office until the conclusion of 25 Annual General Meeting of the company to be held in year 2021 subject

to ratification of the re-appointment by members in each Annual general Meeting on such remuneration as may be fixed

by the Board.”

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

Shri S.P.S Dangi, Cost Accountant (FRN 100004)

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s) the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution

th

th th

st st

th

ORDINARY BUSINESS

SPECIAL BUSINESS

(DIN00023591)

“RESOLVED THAT

”

6. Re-appointment of Shri Shiv Singh Mehta (DIN : 00023523) as Managing Director for further period of 3 years.

“RESOLVED THAT

FURTHER THAT

7. Re-appointmentof ShriSaurabhSinghMehta asaWholeTimeDirector forthefurtherperiodof 3years.

“RESOLVED THAT

pursuant to sections 148(3) and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read

with the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof, for

the time being in force) , appointed as Cost Auditor by the Board of

Directors of the Company to conduct an audit of the Cost Records of the Company for the financial year ending 31

March, 2017 be paid the remuneration as set out in the statement annexed to the notice.

pursuant to the provision of section 197,198 read with schedule V and other applicable provisions, if

any of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or enactment thereof, or any other laws, for time

being in force the consent of the member be and is hereby accorded to reappointment of Shri Shiv Singh Mehta as an

Managing Director of the Company who is already Managing Director of another company, namely Kriti Industries

(India) Ltd for the further period of 3 years commencing from 12 January, 2016 to 11 January,2019 without any

remuneration.

the Managing Director shall be entitled for the reimbursement of actual entertainment,

traveling,boardingand lodgingexpenses incurred byhimin connection with thecompany ‘s business fromtimeto time.”

pursuant to the provision of section 197,198 read with schedule V and other applicable provisions, if

any of the Companies Act, 2013 including any statutory modification or enactment thereof, or any other laws, for time

being in force the consent of the member be and is hereby accorded to reappointment of Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta as

an Whole time Director designated as Executive Director of the Company for the further period of 3 years commencing

from 01 August, 2016 to 31 July, 2019 on remuneration and terms and conditions mentioned in explanatory statement

annexed hereto.

st

th th

RESOLVED

st st
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the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorized to increase , reduce , alter or vary the

terms of remuneration in such manner from time to time as Board may deems fit within the limits specified in schedule V

of the Companies Act,2013 as existing or amended, modified or re enacted from time to time. “

RESOLVED THATFURTHER

8. Adoption of new set of Article of Associations of the Company

“RESOLVED THAT

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT

Place: Indore By order of the Board,

Date: 12 May, 2016

Kriti Nutrients Ltd

CIN L24132MP1996PLC011245 Alheena Khan

Regd. Office: Mehta Chamber, 34 Siyaganj, Company Secretary

Indore

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as special resolution:

pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act,

2013, (including any amendment thereto or re-enactment thereof), the Articles of Association of the Company be and

are hereby altered by replacing all the existing articles with the new set of articles as per Table F Schedule draft hereby

placed and approved.

for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, Shri Shiv Singh Mehta (DIN: 00023523),

Managing Director of the Company be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to do all acts, deeds, matters

and things as deem necessary, proper or desirable and to sign and execute all necessary documents, applications and

returns for the purpose of giving effect to the aforesaid Resolution along with filing of necessary E-forms with the

Registrar of Companies, Gwalior, Madhya Pradesh.”

I

TH
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Notes:

1.

Instructions and other information relating to e-voting are given in this Notice

under Note No. 09.

. A statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 relating to the Special Business to be transacted at

the Meeting is annexed hereto.

The Company has notified closure of Register of Members and Share Transfer Books from Friday, 5 August, 2016 to

Thursday, 11 August, 2016 (both days inclusive) for the Annual General Meeting.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying notice are open for inspection by the members at the Registered

office or Corporate Support Center of the Company on all working days between 11.00 A.M. to 1.00 P.M. up to the date

of meeting.

Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning Accounts and Operations of the Company are requested to

address their questions in writing to the Company at least 7 days before the date of the Meeting so that the information

required may be made available at the Meeting.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report 2016 is being sent to the members whose email Ids are registered with the

Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purpose unless any member has requested for a physical copy

of the same.

In compliance with the provisions of section 108 of the Act and Rules framed there under and in compliance with

Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Members are provided with the facility to casts their vote

electronically, through the e – voting services provided by NSDL, on all resolutions set forth in this Notice.

The instructions for e-voting are as under:

A. In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs are registered with the

Company/Depository Participants(s)] :

(i) Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said

PDF file contains your user ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the password is an initial

password.

(ii) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL:

(iii) Click on Shareholder -

iv) Put user ID and password as initial password/PIN noted in step (i) above. Click Login.

(v) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new password of your choice with minimum 8

digits/characters or combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended not to share your

password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active Voting Cycles.

(vii) Select “REVEN” of “Kriti Nutrients Limited”.

(viii) Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (the”Meeting”) is entitled to appoint a proxy

to attend and vote instead of himself and the proxy need not be a member. The instrument appointing the proxy

should, however, be deposited at the registered office of the company not less than forty eight hours before the

commencement of the meeting.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of the members not exceeding fifty and holding in aggregate not more than ten

percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and

such person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2. The business set out in the Notice will be transacted through electronic voting system and the company is providing

facility for voting by electronic means.

3

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

th

th

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Login

The remote e-voting period commences on Monday, 08 August, 2016 (9:00 A.M. IST ) and ends on Wednesday, 10

August, 2016 (5:00 P.M. IST). During this period members' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in

dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Thursday, 4 August 2016, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The

remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the

member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

(ix) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

(x) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

th th

th
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(xi) Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xii) Corporate / Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned

copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen

signature of the

60, Electronic Complex, Pardeshipura

duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to

with a copy marked to

B. In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM [for members whose email IDs are not registered with

the Company/Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copy] :

(I) Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the Attendance Slip for the AGM :

(II) Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to Sl. No. (xii) above to cast vote.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Members and remote e-voting user

manual forMembers availableat thedownloads section of orcallon toll freeno.:1800-222-990.

If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and password/PIN for

casting your vote.

You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may be used for

sending future communication(s).

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the Company as

on the cut-off date of Thursday, 04 August, 2016.

Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of the notice

and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. Thursday, 04 August, 2016, may obtain the login ID and password by

sending a request at or .

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user ID and

password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User

Details/Password”optionavailableon orcontactNSDLatthefollowingtoll freeno.:1800-222-990.

A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall not be

allowed to vote again at the AGM.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the

depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the

AGM through ballot paper.

CS Ishan Jain, Practicing Company Secretary (M. No. ACS 29444 & C.P. No. 13032) and Proprietor of M/s. Ishan Jain &

Co., Company Secretaries, Indore has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the

Company to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

The Chairman shall, at the AGM at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting

with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Poling Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have

not cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast at the meeting

and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses not in the

employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated

scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in

writing, who shall countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.

The Results declared alongwith the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company

knl.kritiindia.com and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person

authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the BSE Limited, Mumbai.

For any further queries relating to the shares of the Company, you may contact the Share Transfer agent (RTA)at the

following address:

Indore (M.P.) 452010

Tel: 0731-2551745/46, Fax: 0731-4065798,

E-mail:ankit_4321@yahoo.com

kriti.scrutinizer@gmail.com evoting@nsdl.co.in

www.evoting.nsdl.com

evoting@nsdl.co.in RTA

www.evoting.nsdl.com

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

M/s. Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.

th

th
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22.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5

Item No. 6

Item No. 7

Members may also note that the Notice of the 20 AGM and the Kriti Nutrients Ltd. Annual Report 2015-16 will be

available on the Company’s website knl.kritiindia.com. Members who require communication in physical form in

addition to e-communication, or have any other queries, may write to us at :info@kritiindia.com

The following Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the Business mentioned at Item No. 5,6,7to 8 of

the accompanying Notice:

On the recommendations of the Audit Committee, the Board has appointed Shri S.P.S. Dangi, Cost Accountant as the Cost

Auditor to conduct the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending on 31 March, 2017 on a

remuneration of Rs. 25000/- (Rupees Twenty Five Thousand Only).

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014, the remuneration as mentioned above, payable to the cost auditor is required to be ratified by the shareholders

of the Company. The Board recommends the aforesaid resolution for approval of the members.

None of the Directors of the Company, the key managerial personnel of the Company or their relatives are concerned or

interested in the aforesaid ordinary resolution.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of the notice for approval.

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Managing Director of the company was re-appointed as a Managing Director by the Board of

Directors in their meeting held on 04.11.2015. The remuneration committee has considered and recommended his re-

appointmentinthecompanyastheManagingDirectorforafurtherperiodofthreeyearscommencingfrom12thJanuary,2016.

The Remuneration Committee has not recommended any remuneration for the above appointment of Shri Shiv Singh

Mehta as he is at present drawing remuneration from Kriti Industries (India) Limited. Board of Directors of the company has

been given authority to review the remuneration as and when deemed fit.

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta shall be entitled for reimbursement of actual entertainment, travelling, boarding and lodging

expenses incurred by him in connection with the company’s business from time to time.

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta is a dynamic leader and under his initiative and directions, the company would benefit in its future

endeavors. His devotion, vision and experience are essential for the continuing growth of the company. Hence the Board of

Director commends the resolution for re-appointment of Shri Shiv Singh Mehta w.e.f. 12.01.2016 for the approval of

members at the ensuing annual general meeting at no remuneration.

None of the directors except Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Smt. Purnima Mehta and Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta, are concerned or

interested in the resolution.

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 12 May, 2016 passed the resolution for re- appointment of Shri Saurabh Singh

Mehta as Executive Director of the Company w.e.f. 1 August, 2016 for a period of three years on following remuneration

and terms & conditions

a. Salary : Rs. 200000/-per month

th

st

st

th

23. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, in respect of the directors seeking appointment / re-appointment at the AGM, is furnished as

annexure to the Notice. The directors have furnished consent / declaration for their appointment / re-appoointment as

required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder.

b. Perquisites and allowances: Rs. 50000/-per month

The perquisites and allowances shall include House Rent Allowances, Medical Allowances and Leave travel

concession.

c. Commission: Payable for each financial year @ 3% of the net profit as computed in accordance with the

provisions of Section 197 & 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

d. Reimbursements and other facilities; not considered as perquisites :

i. Reimbursement of expenses incurred for travelling, boarding and lodging during business trips; expenses of

telephone at residence and cell phone;

ii. Provision of car with driver;

iii. Payment of club fees.
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03.03.1954

26.12.2009

Finance, Marketing, Technical and Business

Administration

B.E., M.B.A.

Kriti Industries (India) Ltd.

Kriti Auto and Engineering Plastics Pvt. Ltd.

Sakam Trading Private Limited

Rajratan Global Wire Limited

Chetak Builders Private Limited

Organization of Plastics Processors of India

Member: Stakeholder ’s Relationship

Committee

Chairman: Financial Committee

None

Kriti Industries (India) Limited

None

Kriti Industries (India) Limited

No. of Shares: 2028099

Percentage of Shares held: 4.05%

Date of Birth

Date of Appointment

Expertise in specific area

Qualification

List of Outside Directorship held

Chairman/ Member of the

committees of the Board

of Directors of the Company

Chairman / member of the Committees

of Director of other companies in

which he/she is a Director

(a) Audit Committee

(b)Stakeholders’RelationshipCommittee

(c)Remuneration Committee

(d) CSR Committee

No. & Percentage of Shares held

29.07.1981

26.12.2009

Marketing, Finance

B.E., M.B.A.

KritiAuto and EngineeringPlastics Pvt. Ltd.

Sakam Trading Private Limited

Chetak Builders Private Limited

Member: CSR Committee

None

None

None

None

No. of Shares: 30440

Percentage of Shares held: 0.06%

Shiv Singh Mehta

(DIN  00023523)

Saurabh Singh Mehta

(DIN 00023591)
Particulars

Annual Report 2015-16

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED

06

e. Minimum Remuneration: In the event of loss or inadequacy of profits in any financial year during the tenure, the

Company has no profit or its profits are inadequate, the remuneration as set above in (a) & (b) shall be the

minimum remuneration payable.

f. No sitting fees shall be payable for attending the board meeting or committee meeting thereof.

The notice and explanatory statement may be treated as an abstract of the terms and conditions of appointment and

remuneration payable to Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta, as required under Section 197 & 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta did B.E. in Computer Science and Engineering, from Ohio State University, USA and M.B.A. from S.

P. Jain Institute, Mumbai. Shri Saurabh Mehta is keenly involved in the day to day affairs of the Company. The Board of

Directors of the Company recommends his appointment.

None of the directors except Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Smt. Purnima Mehta and Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta, are concerned or

interested in the resolution.

The Existing Articles of Association are replaced by the new set of article as draft hereby placed and approved and adopted

as new set of Articles of Association. The modification in the Articles of Association is carried out to give effect to the

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Consent of the shareholders by passing a Special Resolution is required in this

regard. New set of Articles is available on company’s’ website.

Item No 8.

Details of the Directors seeking reappointment at the Annual General Meeting



DIRECTORS'REPORT

Your Directors h

he Company for the Year 2015-16 is summarized below:

ave pleasure in presenting the 20 Annual Report together with Audited Financial Statements of the

Company for the period ended on 31 March, 2016.

The performance of t

th

st

FINANCIAL RESULTS

YEAR IN RETROSPECT

The Company has achieved a total turnover of (Previous year Rs. 31283.69 Lacs) including exports of

(Previous year Rs. 6157.47 Lacs) and Profit before Tax of (Previous year Rs. 876.56 Lacs) and

Profit after Tax of (Previous year Rs. 575.86 Lacs)

During the year company has achieved quantum jump in refinery operations by expanding in new markets.

Company continues its focus on export of value added products.

It is expected that in the coming year company will maintain reasonable growth prospects in terms of volume and profitably.

During the Financial Year 2015-16, the Board of Directors of the company declared and paid interim dividend @12% (Rs.

0.12/-per equity shares of Rs. 1/- each on 50103520 Equity Shares) absorbing a sum of Rs. 60.12 Lacs (Previous year 10% on

50103520 Equity Shares of Rs. 1/- each aggregating to Rs. 50.10 lacs) and the same is considered as final dividend.

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your

Directors make the following statements in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

that in the preparation of the annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2016, the applicable

accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

that the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and have made judgment

and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Company at the end of the financial year ended 31 March, 2016 and of the statement of profit and loss of the

Company for that period;

that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance

with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and

detecting fraud and other irregularities;

that the annual financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis;

that proper internal financial controls were in place and that the financial controls were adequate and were

operating effectively.

that the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws

were in place and were adequate and operating effectively.

Rs. 36016.95 lacs Rs.

6783.40 lacs Rs. 917.83 lacs

Rs. 629.38 lacs.

DIVIDEND

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

st

Total Income

Profit/(Loss) before Interest, Depreciation & Taxes

Less: Interest

Profit before depreciation

Less: Depreciation

Provision for Taxation

Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax

Net Profit/(loss)

36016.95

1602.84

455.99

1146.85

229.02

288.45

917.83

629.38

31283.69

1567.89

468.38

1099.51

222.95

300.70

876.56

575.86

2014-152015-16Particulars

(Rs. In lacs.)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

RISK MANAGEMENT AND ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

DIRECTORS

The Company has complied with the mandatory provisions on Corporate Governance as prescribed in the Regulation 27 of

SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges. A separate report on

Corporate Governance as per schedule V {C} of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is

included as a part of the Annual Report along with the Practicing Company Secretary Certificate on its compliance.

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the

ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with

Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the

interest of the Company at large.

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also the Board for approval.

Separate disclosure as per regulation 34 (3) and 53 (f) of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,

2015 is made in the report.

In CSR account company was to incurred Rs. 10.91 Lacs in the Financial Year 2015-16 and the outstanding amount for the

financial year 2014-15 is Rs. 8.98 The CSR Committee had identified some projects and expenses will be incurred in the

current year

The Annual Report on CSR details is annexed hereto as Annexure C and forms a part of this Report.

The Company’s system of financial and compliance controls with reference to the financial statements and risk

management is embedded in the business process by which the Company pursues its objectives.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate disclosure controls and procedures and adequate

internal controls over financial reporting with respect to financial statements besides its effectiveness in the context of

applicable regulations.

The Internal Auditor, the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors conduct from time to time an evaluation of the

adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal controls for financial reporting with respect to financial statements.

In terms of Section Shri

Shiv Singh Mehta (DIN 00023523), Managing Director of the company was

In terms of Section Shri

Saurabh Singh Mehta (DIN 00023591), Executive Director of the company was

In terms of Section(s) 149, 152 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for the purpose of

determining the directors liable to retire by rotation, the Independent Directors are not included in the total number of

directors of the Company. Accordingly, Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta (DIN 00023591) shall retire by rotation at the ensuing

Annual General Meeting and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment as a Director of the Company

Pursuant to provisions of Companies Act, 2013 Shri Somnath Ghosh, Independent Director of the company whose terms

was expired on 31 March, 2016 and he has not offerd himself for the re- appointment of next term. The Board appreciated

for the valuable contribution of Dr. Somnath ghosh as Independent director of the company throughout his director ship for

the valuable advice he made from time to time to the management

Lacs.

st

197,198 read with schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013,

reappointment for the further period of 3 years

commencing from 12 January, 2016 to 11 January, 2019 without any remuneration.

197,198 read with schedule V and other applicable provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013,

reappointment for the further period of 3

years commencing from 1 August, 2016 to 31 July, 2019 with remuneration.

th th

st st

.
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DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

MEETINGS

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD, COMMITTEES & DIRECTORS

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR REPORT

COST AUDITOR

SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Necessary declarations have been obtained from all the Independent Directors under sub-section (7) of Section 149 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Shri Sumit Jaitely, Company Secretary of the Company resigned w.e.f 10.09.2015 and in place of him Smt. Alheena Khan was

appointed as Company Secretary w.e.f 07.09.2015

During the financial year five Board Meetings and four Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. The details of

which are given in the Corporate Governance Report. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within the period

prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015.

Pursuant to the Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as stipulated under Chapter IV (17) (10) SEBI (Listing obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Board of Directors adopted a formal mechanism for evaluating its

performance and as well as that of its Committees and individual Directors. A structured evaluation process covering various

aspects of the Boards functioning such as Composition of the Board & committees, experience & competencies,

performance of specific duties & obligations, governance issues etc.

The evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board and that of the Managing Director, Whole

Time Director and the Non Independent Directors were carried out by the Independent Directors.

The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected overall engagement of the Board and its

Committees with the company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139(2) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made

there under, M/s R. S. Bansal and Company, Chartered Accountants (FRN 000939C) the retiring auditor is re-appointed as

Auditors of the Company for the further term of five years from 1 April, 2016 to 31 March, 2021 and to hold the office until

the conclusion of 25 Annual General Meeting of the company to be held in year 2021 subject to ratification of the re-

appointment by members in each Annual general Meeting on such remuneration as may be fixed by the Board.”

The notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Auditors Report are self explanatory and do not call for any further

comments.

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 your

Directors had, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, appointed Shri S.P.S. Dangi, proprietor of M/s S.P.S Dangi,

Cost Auditor (FRN 100004) to audit the cost accounts of the Company for the financial year ending 31.03.2017 Resolution

seeking Member’s ratification for the remuneration payable to Shri S.P.S. Dangi, proprietor of M/s S.P.S Dangi, Cost Auditor

(FRN 100004) is included at Item No. 5 of the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

The company is in process to file the Cost Audit Report to the Central Government within the stipulated time.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed M/s Ashish Karodia & Company, a Company Secretary in

Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith.

st st

th

STATUTORY INFORMATION

PUBLIC DEPOSIT

The company has not received/accepted any deposits from public during the year under review within the

meaning of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014

and there is no overdue unpaid/unclaimed deposit as at 31 March, 2016.st
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURE

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with

Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed

hereto and forms part of this report.

The Board desires to place on record its grateful appreciation for the excellent assistance and co-operation

received and continued support extended to the Company by the bankers, investors, suppliers and esteemed

customers and other business associates. Your Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of

appreciation to all the employees of the Company for their commitment and continued contribution in the

performance of the company.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

GENERAL

Information as per section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto and forms

part of this report.

The extract of Annual Return in Form No.MGT-9 as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial

year ending March 31 , 2016 is annexed hereto as Annexure D and forms part of this report.

The Company has a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instance of fraud and mismanagement, if any. The

details of the Policy is explained in the Corporate Governance Report and also posted on the website of the Company.

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions

on these items during the year under review:

Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.

Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or

commission from its subsidiary.

No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the going

concern status and Company’s operations in future.

During the year under review, there were no cases filed or reported pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women

at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

st

�

�

�

�

�

Place: Indore By order of the Board

Date: 11 August, 2016

Kriti Nutrients Limited

CIN L24132MP1996PLC011245 Shiv Singh Mehta

Regd. Office: Mehta Chamber, 34 Siyaganj, Managing Director

Indore DIN 00023523

th
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS

AND OUTGO

Information as per Section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of the

Directors’ Report for the year ended 31st March, 2016.

I. Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:

(a) Energy Conservation measures taken

(1) Energy conservation devices have been installed and the equipments are maintained properly to reduce energy

consumption.

(2) New systems are being devised to reduce electric power, fuel, and water consumption.

(b) Additional Investment and proposals for reduction of consumption of energy:

By relocating, modifying the available equipment, energy, conservation measures are being implemented on

continuous Basis.

(c) Impact of above measures:

The above measures have resulted in energy saving and subsequent decrease in the cost of production.

1. The efforts made towards technology absorption:

The company has through R & D developed processes adopted which helped in reducing the energy consumption.

2. Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution:

Improvement in processes, reduction of cost and product development.

3. In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial

year): Nil

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERG‘Y

B.  TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & OUTGO

1. Earning

FOB value of Exports

2. Outgoing

a) CIF Value of Imports

b) Expenditure in Foreign Currency

6783.40

67.56

62.24

6154.47

68.69

19.96

12  Months period ended

March, 2016

12  Months period ended

March, 2015

A N N E X U R E -A

( Rs. in Lacs)

Particulars
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A N N E X U R E -B

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(i) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

during the financial year 2015-16, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of

the employees of the Company for the financial year 2015-16 and the comparison of remuneration of each

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the Company are as under:

ii) The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year was Rs. 1.40 Lacs.

iii) In the financial year, there was an increase of 0.71% in the median remuneration of employees;

iv) There were 216 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2016;

v) The Profit before Tax for the financial year ended March 31, 2016 increased by 4.71%.

vi) The company has not come out with public issue : The market capitalization as on March 31, 2016 was Rs.

77.41 crore (Rs. 28.91 crore as on March 31, 2015)

vii) The variable remuneration of the Managing Director / Whole Time Director as a commission base on profit of

the company

viii) The remuneration based on annual appraisals is paid as per the remuneration policy of the company.

Ratio of remuneration

of each Director/

to median

remuneration

of employees

Comparision of the

Remuneration of

the KMP against the

performance of the

Company

Sr.

No.

Name of Director /

KMP & Designation
% increase in

Remunartion

in the FY

2015-2016

Remunartion

for the FY

2015-16

(Rs. in Lacs)

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta

Managing Director

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta

Executive Director

Shri S.C. Jajoo

Chief Financial Officer

Smt. Alheena Khan

Company Secretary

KMP w.e.f. 07.09.2015

1

2

3

4

Nil

27.79

17.61

1.72

Nil

1.46%

28.73%

New

Incumbent

Not

Applicable

19.85

12.58

Not

Applicable

Profit after tax

increased by

9.29%  in F.Y.

2015-16
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A N N E X U R E-C

1. ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) ACTIVITIES

Sr. NO. Details

Shiv Singh Mehta

Member

DIN 00023523

(CSR Committee)

Purnima Mehta

Chairman (CSR Committee)

DIN 00023632

Average net profit of the company for last three

financial years

a. Prescribed CSR expenditure(Two percent of the

amount in SI. No. 1 above)

b. Prescribed CSR expenditure outstanding for the

financial year 2014-15

c. Total CSR Expenditure

a. Total amount to be spent for the financial year

b. amount unspent if any

c. manner in which the amount spent during the

financial year

Reason for not spending the amount in its Board’s

Report

A responsibility of the CSR committee

Rs. 545.57Lacs

Rs.10.91 Lacs

Rs. 8.98 Lacs

Rs. 19.89 Lacs

Rs. 0.42  Lacs

Rs. 19.47 Lacs

0.42 Lacs

The company has been working on identifying the

projects for carrying out CSR activities. The

company is now working on projects and the

expenditure on these projects shall be accounted

for as and when incurred.

The implementation and monitoring of Corporate

Social Responsibility policy, is in compliance with

CSR objectives and policy of the company.

1

2

3

4

5

CSR Project

or

activity

identified

Sector in

which the

project is

covered

Projects or

Programs

Amount Outlay

(budget)

Project or

Programs wise

Amount spent

on the

Projects or

Programs

subheads:

Amount Spent

direct or

through imple-

menting

agency

Sr

No.

Promoting

gender

inequality

Clause (ii)

of Schedule

VII of the

Companies

Act, 2013

Local Area

or other

Rs. 0.42 Lacs Direct1

Particulars

2. MANNER IN WHICH THE AMOUNT SPENT DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR.
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31.03.2016

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

CIN

Registration Date

Name of the Company

Category/Sub-Category of the Company

Address of the Registered office and contact details

Whether Listed Company

Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and

Transfer Agent if any

L24132MP1996PLC011245

24 September, 1996

Kriti Nutrients Limited

Company having Share Capital

Mehta Chambers, 34-Siyaganj, Indore-452007 (M.P.)

Tel. No. 0731-2719100

Yes

Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd ,

Plot No. 60, Electronic Complex,

Pardeshipura, Indore- 452010 (M.P.)

Tel. No. 0731-2551745/46

th

II.    PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. No.
Name and Description of

Main products/Services

NIC Code of the

Product / Service

% to total turnover

of the company

1. Soya Lecithin Flakes and Flour 10407 24.27%

2. Soya Crude Oil / Refined Oil 10402 75.73%

III.   PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  -

Sr. No.
Name and  Address

of The Company

CIN/GLN % of Shares

Held

1 Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd. U65993MP1986PTC003517 Holding 52.09% 2(46)

Holding /Subsidiary/

Associate

Applicable

Section

IV.      SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of

Shareholders Demat Physical
Total

Share

% of Total

Share
Demat Physical

Total

Share

% of Total

Share

% Change

during &

the year

No. of. Shares held at the beginning of

the year

No. of. Shares held at the end of

the year

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

Sub-Total (A)(1): 33096878 - 33096878 66.06 33096878 - 33096878 66.06 0.00

a) Individual / HUF 2299247 - 2299247 4.59 2299247 - 2299247 4.59 0.00

b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - -

c) State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - -

d) Bodies Corporate 30797631 - 30797631 61.47 30797631 - 30797631 61.47 0.00

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - -

f) Any Other - - - - - - - -

A N N E X U R E -D
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(2) Foreign

Sub-Total (A)(2) - - - - -

Total Shareholding of

Promoters (A) =

(A)(1)+(A)(2)

1600 - 1600 1600 - 1600 0.00

13765162 3239880 17005042 33.94 13878762 3126280 17005042 33.94 0.00

46863640 50103520 100 46977240 50103520 100 0.00

a) NRIs - Individuals - - - - - - -

b) Other - Individuals - - - - - - -

c) Bodies Corporate - - - - - - -

d) Banks / FI - - - - - - -

e) Any Other - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

1600 - 1600 0.00 1600 - 1600 0.00

- - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

- - - - - - - -

2605176 17600 2622776 5.23 3074102 17600 309`702 6.17 0.94

- - - - - - - -

b) Individuals

131346 - 131346 0.26 142113 - 142113 0.28 0.02

11554 - 11554 0.02 19276 - 19276 0.04 0.02

33096878 - 33096878 66.06 33096878 - 33096878 66.06 0.00

13766762 17006642 33.94 13880362 17006642 33.94 0.00

- - - - - - - -

0.00

0.00 0.00

3239880 3126280

3239880 3126280

5549553 3222280 8771833 17.51 5722048 3108680 8830728 17.62 0.11

5467533 - 5467533 10.91 4921223 - 4921223 9.82 1.09

B. Public Shareholding

1 Institutions

Sub-total (B)(1):-

2. Non- Institutions

Sub-total (B)(2):-

Total Public Shareholding

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

C. Shares held by

Custodian for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total(A+B+C)

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies

g) FIIs

h)

i) Others (specify)

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

i) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share

capital upto Rs. 1 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders

holding nominal share

capital in excess of

Rs 1 lakh

c) Others (NRI & OCB)

d) Other (Clearing Member)

Foreign VentureCapitalFunds

Category of

Shareholders

Demat Physical
Total

Share

% of Total

Share
Demate Physical

Total

Share

% of Total

Share

% Change

during &

the year

No. of. Shares held at the beginning of

the year

No. of. Shares held at the end of

the year
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Shareholder's

Name

No. of

Shares

% of Total

Shares of

the Company

% of Shares

Pledged

encumbered

to total shares

%

Change

during

&

the

year

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the

end of the year

No. of

Shares

% of Total

Shares of

the Company

% of Shares

Pledged

encumbered

to total shares

Sr.

No

1

2

3

Total

Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd. 26099473 52.09 - 26099473 52.09 - -

Chetak Builders Pvt. Ltd. 4608158 9.20 - 4608158 9.20 - -

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta 2028099 4.05 - 2028099 4.05 - -

4 Smt. Purnima Mehta 120692 0.24 - 120692 0.24 - -

5 Kriti Specialities Pvt. Ltd. 90000 0.18 - 90000 0.18 - -

6 Smt. Raj Kumari Kothari 83280 0.17 - 83280 0.17 - -

7 Smt. Devki Mehta Hirawat 36736 0.07 - 36736 0.07 - -

8 Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta 30440 0.06 - 30440 0.06 - -

33096878 66.06 - 33096878 66.06 - -

For Each of the Top 10

Shareholders

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the

end of the year

Sr.

No

No. of

Shares

% of total Shares

of the Company

No. of

Shares

% of total Shares

of the Company

1 Chartered Finance And Leasing Limited 1545274 3.08 2210200 4.41

2 Praveen Kumar Kasliwal

Raja Bahadursingh Kasliwal 1030390 2.06 1027565 2.05

3 Jyoti Kasliwal

Praveen Kasliwal 676600 1.35 673725 1.34

4 Rahul Chandrasingh Mehta

Chandrasingh Mehta 500000 1.00 500000 1.00

5 Sanjay Kothari 440000 0.88 440000 0.88

6 Sheetal Rahul Mehta

Rahul Mehta 416000 0.83 416000 0.83

7 Varsha Bhavesh Shah

Bhavesh Dhireshbhai Shah 412729 0.82 412729 0.82

8 Juhi Kasliwal

Divyansh Singhvi 378600 0.76 375725 0.75

9 Nandita Kasliwal 377370 0.75 374543 0.75

10. Anantroop Financial Advisory Services Pvt. Ltd. 290079 0.58 300000 0.60

(ii)   Shareholding of Promoters

(iii)   Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the

end of the year

Sr.

No

No. of

Shares

% of total Shares

of the Company

No. of

Shares

% of total Shares

of the Company

1 At the beginning of the Year 33096878 66.06 33096878 66.06

2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters Share

holding during the year specifying the reasons for

increase / decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /

bonus/ sweat equity etc):

3 At the End of the year 33096878 66.06 33096878 66.06

(iv)Shareholding Patternof toptenShareholders (otherthanDirectors,PromotersandHoldersof GDRsandADRs):

No change

Particulars
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For Each of Director And KMP

Shareholding at the

beginning of the year

Shareholding at the

end of the year

Sr.

No

No. of

Shares

% of total Shares

of the Company

No. of

Shares

% of total Shares

of the Company

1 Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Managing Director 2028099 4.05 2028099 4.05

2 Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta, Whole-time Director 30440 0.06 30440 0.06

3 Smt. Purnima Mehta, Director 120692 0.24 120692 0.24

4 Shri Rakesh Kalra, Independent Director - - - -

5 CA Manoj Fadnis, Independent Director - - - -

6 Dr. Somnath Ghosh, Independent Director - - - -

7 Shri Bhuwanesh Shastri, Independent Director - - - -

8 Shri S.C. Jajoo, Chief Financial Officer 100 0.00 100 0.00

9 Smt.AlheenaKhan,CompanySecretary&ComplianceOfficer - - 5 0.00

(v)   Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

V.  INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment

Deposits Total

Indebtedness

Unsecured LoansSecured Loans

excluding deposits

VI.    REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in - 12.00 12.00

section  17(1) of the Income-tax Act,1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2) Income-tax Act,1961 - 5.00 5.00

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under - - -

section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option

3. Sweat Equity

4. Commission-

as % of profit - 9.35 9.35

others, specify… - - -

5. Employers Provident Fund

Total (A)

- - -

- - -

- 1.44 1.44

- 27.79 27.79

Sr.

No.
Particulars of Remunaration

Name of MD/TWD /Manager
Total AmountsShri Shiv Singh

Mehta (MD)

Shri Saurabh Singh

Mehta (WHD)

Particulars

(Rs. in lacs)

Indebtedness at the beginning of the

financial year

Total (i+ii+iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year·

Net Change

Total (i+ii+iii)

i) Principal Amount 2030.54 155.78 NIL 2186.32

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

Addition· - - - -

Reduction

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount 1430.80 154.31 NIL 1585.11

ii) Interest due but not paid - - - -

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - -

2030.54 155.78 NIL 2186.32

(599.74) (1.47) - (601.21)

1430.80 154.31 NIL 1585.11

599.74 1.47 - 601.21
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B.   Remuneration to other directors:

Sr. No Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors

Total

Amount
Shri Rakesh

Kalra

C.A. Manoj

Fadnis

Shri Bhuvnesh

Shastri
Independent Directors

C.   REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sr. No Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Total Amount

Shri S.C. Jajoo. CFO Smt. Alheena Khan, CS

VII.   PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type
Section of the

Companies Act,

2013

Brief

Description

Details of Penalty

Punishment /compounding

fees imposed

Authority (RD)

NCLT/

COURT)

Appeal made,

if any

(give details

COMPANY/ DIRECTORS / OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

None

None

None

Place: Indore By order of the Board

Date: 12 May, 2016

Kriti Nutrients Ltd.

CIN L24132MP1996PLC011245 Shiv Singh Mehta

Regd. Office: Mehta Chamber, 34 Siyaganj, Managing Director

Indore DIN 00023523

TH

Dr. Somnath

Ghosh1

(Rs. in lacs)

(Rs. in lacs)

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 17.61 1.72 19.33

section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s17(2)

Income-taxAct, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section17(3)

Income-taxAct, 1961

2. Stock Option

3. Sweat Equity

4. Commission-

as % of profit-]

others,specify…

5. Others, please specify

Total 17.61 1.72 19.33

- - -

- - -

- - -

- - -
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Fee for attending board

committee meetings

· Commission·

Others, please specify

Total (1)

· Fee for attending board ] 0.09 0.09

committee meetings

· Commission

· Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Other Non-Executive Directors             Smt. Purnima Mehta

TOTAL MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION (A+B)

0.09 0.09 0.04 0.00 0.22

0.31

0.22

0.09

28.10



SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2016

To

The Members,

Mehta Chambers, 34, Siyaganj,Indore, Madhya Pradesh

ST

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule no.9 of the Companies Appointment and Remuneration of

Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

,

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED

CIN- L24132MP1996PLC011245

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good

corporate practices by (hereinafter called the Company) having

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate

conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the

audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March 2016, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder

and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner

and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by

for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2016 according to the provisions of:

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign

Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

Not applicable as the Company has not entered in any such transaction.

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI

Act’):-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)

Guidelines, 1999;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993

regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED CIN- L24132MP1996PLC011245.

KRITI

NUTRIENTS LIMITED

�

�

�

�

�

Not applicable as the Company has not issued any kind of securities during the period under scrutiny.

Not applicable as the Company does not have any Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase

Scheme.

Not applicable as the Company does not have any listed debt securities.

Not applicable as the Company has not delisted its equity shares from any stock exchange during the financial year

under review.

Not applicable as the Company has not bought back any of its securities during the financial year under review.
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vi. The laws as are applicable specifically to the Company are as under:

a) The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986;

b) The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974;

c) The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

d) The Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling & Transboundary Movement)

e) Factories Act, 1948

f) Industrial Disputes Act, 1947

g) The Payment of Wages Act, 1936

h) The Minimum Wages Act, 1948

i) The Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

j) The Employee Provident Fund And Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952

k) The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965

l) The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

m) Contract Labour (Regulation And Abolition) Act, 1970

n) The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946.

o) The Apprentices Act, 1961

p) Food Safety And Standards Act, 2006

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses/regulations of the following:

(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements/ Regulations entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines,

Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that: -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive

Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the

period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent

generally seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the

agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majoritydecisioniscarriedthroughwhilethedissentingmembers’views, ifany,arecapturedandrecordedaspartoftheminutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company which commensurate with the size and

operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period:-

1. The Members have accorded their consent to the Board of Directors at the Annual General Meeting held on September

24, 2015 for the following: -

a. to ratify the remuneration of Mr. S.P.S Dangi, Cost Accountant (FRN 100004), cost auditors of Company appointed

by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct an audit of the Cost Records of the Company for the

financial year ending 31.03.2016 on a remuneration of Rs. 20,000/- (Rupees Twenty Thousand only).

b. to appoint Mr. Bhuwanesh Shashtri as an Independent Director of the Company for the term of 5 years on the

recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Board of Directors of the Company.

Rules, 2008

Note:CompanywasnotabletospenttheprescribedamounttowardsCorporateSocialResponsibility tilldateof this report.

For Ashish Karodia & Company

CS Ashish Karodia

Company Secretary

M No. 6549, CP 6375

Date : 12 May 2016

Place : Indore

th



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The places great emphasis on values such as empowerment and integrity of its employees,

safety of the employees & communities surrounding our plants, transparency in decision making process, fair &

ethical dealings with all. These practices being followed since the inception have contributed to the Company’s

sustained growth.

The is committed to the adoption of best governance practices. The company’s vision

document spells out a direction for the policies and procedures which ensure long term sustainability. Value creation

for stakeholders is thus a continuous endeavor at Kriti.

On the same lines the Company has always followed fair business and corporate practices while dealing with the

shareholders, employees, customers, creditors, lenders and the society at large.

In harmony with this philosophy, the Company relentlessly strives for excellence by bench marking itself with

esteemed companies with good corporate governance. Your company is compliant with all the provisions of Clause

49 of the Listing Agreement of the Stock Exchange as well as the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 as applicable to the

Company since 1 December, 2015

The details of compliance are as follows:

:

Kriti’s governance structure is based on the principles of freedom to the executive management within a given

framework to ensure that the powers vested in the executive management are exercised with due care and

responsibility so as to meet the expectation of all the stakeholders. In line with these principles, the Company has

formed three tiers of Corporate Governance structure, viz.:

- The primary role of the Board is to protect the interest and enhance value for all the

stakeholders. It conducts overall strategic supervision and control by setting the goals & targets, policies, governance

standards, reporting mechanism & accountability and decision making process to be followed.

- such as Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, CSR Committee

etc. are focused on financial reporting, audit & internal controls, compliance issues, appointment and remuneration

of Directors and Senior Management Employees, implementation and monitoring of CSR activities.

– The entire business including the support services are managed with clearly

demarcated responsibilities and authorities at different levels.

The Board of directors of the company consists of an optimum combination of executive, non-executive and

independent directors, to ensure the independent functioning of the Board. The composition of the Board also

complies with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. As at the end of

corporate financial year 2015-16, the total Board consists of Seven (7) directors, out of which for (5) are non-executive

directors and out of the Five(5) non-executive directors Four (4) are independent Director.

The composition of the Board of directors and the number of Board Committee in which they are chairman/ member

as on 31 March, 2016 are as under:

Kriti Nutrients Limited

Kriti Nutrients Limited (‘Kriti’)

1. The Governance Structure

2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A. Composition of Board

st

st

(I) The Board of Directors

(ii) Committees of Directors

(iii) Executive Management

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
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Shri Shiv Singh Mehta

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta

Smt. Purnima Mehta

CA Manoj fadnis

Shri Rakesh Kalra

Shri Bhuwnesh Shastri

Dr. Somnath Ghosh

Promoter & MD

Executive Director

Promoter & NED

Independent & NED

Independent & NED

Independent & NED

Independent & NED

Two

Nil

One

One

Five

Nil

One

Two

Nil

Nil

One

Two

Nil

One

Three

Nil

Four

Two

Three

Nil

Two

The Term of Dr. Somnath Ghosh as Independent Director expired on 31 March, 2016 and did not offer himself for

re-appointment.

B. Selection and Appointment/Reappointment of Director

C. Meetings, agenda and proceedings etc. of the Board Meeting:

st

:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee have approved a Policy for the Selection, Appointment and

Remuneration of Directors. Directors are appointed or re-appointed with the approval of the shareholders and shall

remain in office in accordance with the provisions of the law and the retirement policy laid down by the Board from

time-to-time.

During the year under review, Five (5) meetings of the Board of directors were held. The dates of the meetings were

decided in advance and key information was placed before the Board. The Board of Directors meetings were held on

20 May, 2015, 11 August, 2015, 04 November, 2015, 14 February, 2016 & 12 March, 2016.
th th th th th

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta

Smt. Purnima Mehta

CA Manoj fadnis

Shri Rakesh Kalra

Shri Bhuwnesh Shastri

Dr. Somnath Ghosh

5

5

5

5

5

4

5

5

4

5

5

5

4

1

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

No

D. Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:

E. Agenda:

F. Support and Role of Company Secretary

As stipulated by the Code of Independent Directors under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations, a separate

meeting of the Independent Directors of the Company was held on 4 November, 2015 to review the performance of Non-

independent Directors (including the Chairman) and the entire Board.

All the meetings are conducted as per well designed and structured agenda. All the agenda items are backed by necessary

supporting information and documents (except for the critical price sensitive information, which is circulated separately or

placed at the meeting) to enable the Board to take informed decisions.

:

The Company Secretary is responsible for convening the Board and Committee meetings, preparation and distribution of

Agenda and other documents and recording of the Minutes of the meetings.

th

Name Category No. of Director-
ship in other

public Limited
Companies

No. of Committee Position
held in other Public Limited

Companies
Chairman Member

No. of  Board Meeting
held during the year

No. of  Board Meeting
Attended

Attendance at the last AGM
held on 24th September, 2015

Name of Director
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G. Board Evaluation:

H. Code of Conduct

I. Prevention of Insider Trading Code:

J. Disclosure of Relationship between Directors inter-se:

During the year, the Board started a formal mechanism for evaluating its performance and effectiveness as well as that of its

Committees and individual Directors. The exercise was carried out through a structured evaluation process covering various

aspects of the Boards functioning such as composition of the Board & committees, experience & competencies,

performance of specific duties & obligations, governance issues etc. The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results,

which reflected the overall engagement and effectiveness of the Board and its Committees.

:

All the Board members and senior management personnel have confirmed compliance with the code. A declaration to that

effect signed by the Managing Director is attached and forms part of the Annual Report of the Company.

As per SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulation, 2015, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of

Insider Trading. The trading window is closed during the time of declaration of results and occurrence of any material events

as per the code. The Company has appointed Company Secretary as Compliance Officer, who is responsible for setting forth

procedures and implementation of the code for trading in Company’s securities. During the year under review there has

been due compliance with the said code.

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta

Smt. Purnima Mehta

Smt. Purnima Mehta

Spouse

Father

Son

Son

Spouse

Mother

Smt. Purnima Mehta

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta

Smt. Purnima Mehta

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta

Relationship
Name of other Directors
in Inter-se relationshipName of Directors

K. No. of Shares of held by Non-Executive Director

No. of Shares Held

Smt. Purnima Mehta

CA Manoj Fadnis

Dr. Somnath Ghosh

Shri Rakesh Kalra

120692

-

-

-

L. Web Link: knl.kritiindia.com

3. AUDIT COMMITTEE

(a) Terms of reference:

(b) Constitution and Composition:

The Board has constituted a well-qualified Audit Committee. All the members of the Committee are Non-Executive

Directors with majority of them are Independent Directors including Chairman. They possess sound knowledge on

accounts, audit, finance, taxation, internal controls etc.

The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the committee.

The Audit Committee has adequate powers and detailed terms of reference to play effective role as required under

the provisions of section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulation, 2015 entered into with the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee of the Company as on 31 March, 2016 comprises of the following Directors of the Company.
st
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All the three members of the audit committee are non-executive directors and two of them are independent.

Four (4) meetings were held during the financial year 2015-16 on 20 May 2015, 11 August 2015, 04 November

2015 and 14 February 2016. The attendance of each member of the committee is as under:

(c) Meeting and attendance during the year:
th th th

th

CA Manoj Fadnis, Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting to answer

the shareholders queries.

The Remuneration Committee recommends remuneration, promotions, increments etc. for the whole time

directors and relative of the directors to the Board for approval.

The Remuneration Committee of the Company as on 31 March, 2016 comprises of the following Directors of

the Company.

4. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

(a) Terms of reference:

(b) Composition:

st

Name of the Director No. of Meeting attended

4

4

4

CA Manoj Fadnis

Shri Rakesh Kalra

Smt. Purnima Mehta

Name of the Director Designation

Chairman

Member

Member

All the three members of the Nomination and Remuneration committee are non-executive and independent

directors.

CS Alheena Khan, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee

Two (2) meetings were held during the financial year 2015-16 on 04 November, 2015 and 12 March, 2016. The

attendance of each member of the committee is as under:

(c) Meeting and attendance during the year:
th th

Name of the Director No. of Meeting attended

2

1

2

CA Manoj Fadnis

Dr. Somnath Ghosh

Shri Rakesh Kalra

CA Manoj Fadnis

Shri Rakesh Kalra

Dr. Somnath Ghosh

Name of the Director Designation

CA Manoj Fadnis

Shri Rakesh Kalra

Smt. Purnima Mehta

Chairman

Member

Member

(d) Performance Evaluation for Independent Directors:

Pursuant to the Provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and as stipulated under regulation 25 of SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015, the Board of Directors adopted a formal mechanism for

evaluating its performance and as well as that of its Committees and individual Directors.
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Name of the Director Salary (Rs.) Perquisites Commissions Stock Option Details Period of Contract

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta 13.44 5.00 9.35 NIL 3 Years starting from

1st August, 2013

Remuneration/Sitting fee to other Non Executive Directors:

The details of sitting fee paid to each of the other non executive/Independent Directors during the year 2015-16

ended on 31 March, 2016 are given below:st

Name Sitting Fee Other Payment Total

Shri Rakesh Kalra

CA Manoj Fadnis

Dr. Somnath Ghosh

Shri Bhuwanesh Shastri

0.09

0.09

0.00

0.04

0.09

0.09

0.00

0.04

-

-

-

-

5. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

a) In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 20 of SEBI (Listing

Obligations and DisclosureRequirements) Regulation,2015.The“Stakeholders’Relationship Committee”consistingof:

Name of the Director Designation

b) CS Alheena Khan, acts as Secretary of the committee.

c) Share holder Compliant Status during the financial year 2015-16:

Chairman

Member

Member

Member

Dr. Somnath Ghosh

CA Manoj Fadnis

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta

Smt. Purnima Mehta

(e). Remuneration Policy:

Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors:

The Company follows a policy on remuneration of Directors and Senior Management Employees.

The Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to receive remuneration by way of sitting fees, reimbursement of

expenses for participation in the Board / Committee meetings. detailed hereunder:

I. A Non-Executive Director shall be entitled to receive sitting fees for each meeting of the Board or

Committee of the Board attended by him of such sum as may be approved by the Board of Directors

within the overall limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies Managerial

Remuneration Rule, 2014;

ii. The company is not having any Pecuniary relationship of transaction with Non- Executive director

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Managing Director of the Company was appointed without any remuneration; hence no

remuneration was paid to him by the Company.

The terms of remuneration of Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta, Executive Director has already been fixed by the Board

of directors and was approved by the shareholders.

During the financial year 2015-16, the particulars of remuneration paid to Whole-time Director is as under: -

Details of Remuneration to Managing Director, Executive Director & Non- Executive Director:

(Rs. in lacs)

(Rs. in lacs)

Annual Report 2015-16

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED

25

No. of Shareholder Compliant received

during the financial year 2015-16

No. of Complaint resolved No. of Complaint Pending

15 15 0



Year

2014-2015

2013-2014

2012-2013

Location

4 Floor, Chetak Chamber,

14, RNT Marg, Indore

4 Floor, Chetak Chamber,

14, RNT Marg, Indore

4 Floor, Chetak Chamber,

14, RNT Marg, Indore

th

th

th

Date

24 September, 2015
TH

25 September, 2014

14 September, 2013

TH

TH

Time

4:00 PM

4:30 PM

5:00 PM

6. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 the company has framed Corporate Social Responsibility

Committee (CSR Committee) consisting of the following members:

Name of the Director Designation

Chairman

Member

Member

Smt. Purnima Mehta

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta

Dr. Somnath Ghosh

The said Committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and recommending to the Board, a CSR

Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring the implementation of the CSR Policy.

The MD have issued certificate pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (LODR), 2015 certifying that

the financial statements do not contain any materially untrue statement and these statements represent a true and

fair view of the Company's affairs. The said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report

The details of the location and time for last three Annual General Meetings of the company are given hereunder: -

7. MD CERTIFICATION

8. INFORMATION ON GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Special

Resolutions

No

Two

One

Special resolution

through postal

Ballot

No

No

No

During the year under review, no extra ordinary general meeting was held as well as no resolution was passed through

the Postal Ballot process.

The quarterly, half-yearly and yearly financial results of the Company are sent to the Stock Exchange immediately after

these are approved by the Board. These are widely published in following newspapers. These results are simultaneously

posted on thewebsiteof theCompanyatknl.kritiindia.comand also uploaded on thewebsiteof theBSE Ltd.

9. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Quaterly Results Displayed in WebsiteNews Paper Publication

knl.kritiindia.com

knl.kritiindia.com

knl.kritiindia.com

knl.kritiindia.com

Naidunia, Indore & Business

Standard,  Mumbai

Naidunia, Indore & Business

Standard,  Mumbai

Naidunia, Indore & Business

Standard,  Mumbai

Naidunia, Indore & Business

Standard,  Mumbai

30.06.2015

30.09.2015

31.12.2015

31.03.2016

10. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

(a) Annual General Meeting:

The 20 Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on Thursday, the 11 August, 2016 at 05:00 P.M. at

CorporateSupportCenterof thecompanysituated at“ChetakChambers”4 Floor,14R.N.T.Marg, Indore-452001( M.P)

th th

th
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a.

b.

c.

d.

e.

Un-Audited Results for the first quarter ending 30 June, 2016

Un-Audited

Un-Audited

th

Un-Audited Results for the Second quarter ending 30 September 2016

Results for the Third quarter ending 31 December, 2016

Results (Audited) for thefourth quarterending31 March,2017

Annual General Meeting for the year ending 31 March, 2017

th

st

st

st

On or Before 14 August, 2016

On orBefore14 November,2016

On or Before 14 February, 2017

On or Before 30 May, 2017

Before end of September, 2017

th

th

th

th

30
th

(f) Listing on Stock Exchanges

(g) Stock Code/Details of Scrip

(h) Market Price Data (Rs.)

The Company’s shares are traded on BSE.

The Company’s shares are presently listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE). The Company has paid

annual listing fee for the year 2016-17.

BSE :- 533210

NSDL & CDSL-ISIN : - INE798K01010

The monthly high and low quotations of shares of the Company traded at the Bombay Stock Exchange, Mumbai

during the financial year 2015-16 are given below:

(c) Book Closure/Record date

(d) Interim Dividend and Record Date

(e) Dividend History

:

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company shall remain closed from Friday, 5 August,

2016 to Thursday, 11 August, 2016 (both days inclusive) for the Annual General Meeting.

:

The Board of directors of the Company has declared Interim Dividend @ 12 % (0.12) per share on the equity shares of

Rs. 1/- each and

The Dividend history for the past 5 years are as under:

th

th

has made payment for the same on 31 March, 2016.
st

2015-16

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

Financial Year

12%

-

-

-

-

Interim Dividend %

-

10%

10%

6%

15%

Final  Dividend %

12%

10%

10%

6%

15%

Total  Dividend %

60.12

50.10

50.10

30.06

75.16

Amount of Dividend (Rs. in Lacs)

Month

April, 2015

May, 2015

June, 2015

July, 2015

August, 2015

September, 2015

October, 2015

November, 2015

December, 2015

January, 2016

February, 2016

March, 2016

High (Rs.)

6.29

6.50

9.76

10.50

13.50

16.99

17.30

22.50

27.90

35.50

28.55

17.20

Low (Rs.)

5.32

5.45

6.00

7.17

8.30

10.21

14.15

14.50

20.65

20.80

13.50

13.30

(b) Financial Calender for the year 2016-17 (1 April, 2016 to 31 March, 2017)
st st
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(i) Share Transfer Agent

Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.

(j) Share Transfer System

Plot No. 60, Electronic Complex, Pardeshipura, Indore- 452 010 (M.P) Tel: 0731-2551745/46

Fax: 0731-4065798, E-mail: ankit_4321@yahoo.com

Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.

The Share Transfer-cum-Investors Grievance Committee attends to share transfer formalities once in a fortnight.

Demat requests are normally confirmed within an average period of 15 days from the date of receipt. The Company

has appointed following agency as Share Transfer Agent (Electronic + Physical). The shareholders may address their

communication, suggestions, grievances and queries to

(k) Distribution of Shareholding as on 31 March, 2016st

No. of Shares

1-1000

1001-2000

2001-3000

3001-4000

4001-5000

5001-10000

10001-20000

20001-30000

30001-40000

40001-50000

50001-100000

100000 Above

Total

No. of Shareholders

4268

1033

277

298

66

137

50

19

12

3

11

19

6193

% of Shareholders

68.92

16.68

4.47

4.81

1.07

2.21

0.81

0.31

0.19

0.05

0.18

0.31

100

(l) Dematerialization of Shares & Liquidity

(m) Details of Demat Shares as on 31 March 2016

The shares of the Company are under compulsory demat segment and are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange,

Mumbai. The Company's shares are available for trading in the depository of both NSDL & CDSL.
st

No. of Shareholders/Beneficial Owners No. of Shares % of Capital

NSDL

CDSL

Shares in physical form

Sub-Total

Grand Total

2449

1350

3799

2394

6193

42615308

4361932

46977240

3126280

50103520

85.05

8.71

93.76

6.24

100.00

(n) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit:

As stipulated by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), a qualified practicing Company Secretary carries out

the Share Capital Audit to reconcile the total admitted capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and

Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and the total issued and listed capital. This audit is carried out every

quarter and the report thereon is submitted to stock exchanges, NSDL and CDSL and is also placed before the Board of

Directors. No discrepancies were noticed during these audits.
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(o) Outstanding Convertible Instruments:

(p) Plant locations of the Company:

(q) Address for communication:

Ankit Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.

E-mail: ankit_4321@yahoo.com

11. DISCLOSURES

(a). Disclosure regarding materially significant related party transactions

(b). Disclosure of non-compliance by the Company

(c). Whistle Blower/Vigil Mechanism Policy:

There are no outstanding warrants or any convertible instruments.

Industrial Area No. 3, Dewas - 455001 (M.P)

The shareholders may address their communication, suggestions, grievances and queries to:

Plot No. 60, Electronic Complex

Pardeshipura, Indore- 452 010 (M.P)

Tel: 0731-2551745/46, Fax: 0731-4065798

:

None of the transaction with any of the related parties were in conflict with the interest of the Company. Attention of

members is drawn to the disclosure of transactions with the related parties set out in Note No. 40 of Notes on

Accounts, forming part of the Annual report.

All related party transactions are negotiated on arms length basis and are intended to further the interest of the

company.

:

There has been no instance of non-compliance on any matter related to the capital markets, during the last two years.

The Company has laid down a Whistle Blower Policy/vigil mechanism. The company encourages an open door policy

where employees have access to the Head of the business/ function. The company takes cognizance of the

complaints made and suggestions given by the employees and others. Complaints are looked into and whenever

necessary, suitable corrective steps are taken. No employee of the company has been denied access to the Audit

Committee in this regard.

The policy provides a platform to all the employees, vendors and customers to report any suspected or confirmed

incident of fraud/misconduct through any of the following reporting protocols:

* E-mail : info@kritiindia.com

* Written Communication to : Mehta Chamber, 34, Siyaganj, Indore-452007( M.P)

(d) Web links for policies:

Particulars

Material Event Policy

Related Party Transaction policy

Web links

knl.kritiindia.com/policies/

knl.kritiindia.com/policies/
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MD / CEO CERTIFICATION

To,

The Board of Directors,

Kriti Nutrients Limited

For : Kriti Nutrients Limited

Shiv Singh Mehta

Managing Director (DIN 00023523)

Dear Sirs,

We have reviewed the Financial Statement read with the cash flow statement of for the year 31 March, 2016

and that to the best of their knowledge and belief:

1. Thesestatementsdonotcontainanymateriallyuntruestatementoromitanymaterialfactorcontainstatementsthatmightbemisleading;

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting

standards, applicable laws and regulations.

We further certify that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which

are fraudulent, illegal or violate the Company's code of conduct.

We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that they have evaluated the

effectiveness of internal control systems of the company pertaining to financial reporting and have not noticed any deficiency that

need to be rectified or disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit.

We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there is

1. No significant change in internal control over financial reporting during the year

2. No significant change in accounting policies during the year under review and

3. No instance of any fraud in the company in which the management has any role.

Kriti Nutrients Limited

I hereby declare that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct

as adopted by the Company.

st

DECLARATION REGARDING CODE OF CONDUCT

For : Kriti Nutrients Limited

Shiv Singh Mehta, Managing Director (DIN 00023523)
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE OF CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To the Shareholders of Kriti Nutrients Limited

Kriti Nutrients Limited

(L24132MP1996PLC01124

For : Ashish Karodia & Company

Company Secretary

Place : Indore

Date: 12 May 2016 CS Ashish Karodia

M.No. 6549

CP No. 6375

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by

5), Indore for the period ended 31 March, 2016 as stipulated in Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement

(‘Listing Agreement’) of the said Company with Stock Exchanges in India for the period 1st April 2015 to 30th November 2015 and as

per the relevant provisions of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015(‘Listing Regulations’) as referred to in Regulation 15 (2) of the Listing Regulations for the period 1st December

2015 to 31st March 2016.

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited

to the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of

Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of an opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has

complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above mentioned Listing Agreement/ Listing

Regulations, as applicable.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

st

th



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

OVERVIEW

PERFORMANCE & MARKET REVIEW

BUSINESS STRATEGY ANALYSIS AND OUTLOOK

THREAT

Soya bean is hailed as the most protective bean. Soya contains 40 percent protein. It has the highest protein content
amongst plant products. Soya bean is the only vegetable food that contains all eight essential amino acids .The
Company is engaged in the business of edible oil, lecithin, soya de-oiled cake and soya flour & varieties of soya
products.

As per USDA world oilseed production is 526.98 MMT out of which soya bean share is 320.15 MMT.

The soya products are being used as nutritive supplement in various food products in the world.

The demand of protein rich meal in Asian countries is continuously growing & India is better placed from the point of
view of logistics and customer reach.

In India, the largest soybean production state is Madhya Pradesh which is around 46% share of the total production in
India and the second largest state is Maharashtra which is around 36% share of the total production in India. Soya
Industry depends to a large extent on the monsoon.

As per the latest data available, the export of soya bean meal during the financial year 2015-16 was 3,87,298 tones as
compared with the 14,67,699 tones during the last year.

Due to continuous disparity and uneconomic working in normal soya crushing, Company has consciously decided to
shift focus on refinery operations, soya value added products and lecithin. This business strategy is now working
satisfactorily as being reflected in operating results.

With the strong distribution network and brand ‘Kriti’ company could maintain growth in refined soya oil and value
added products. In spite of challenges in soya industry, Company maintains its steady growth in domestic as well as
export market.

Company has taken initiative in adopting technological improvements to enlarge market share.

The key drivers for growth and stability of the company are summarized below:

Fully integrated facility for processing soya beans and refining oil for edible use.

Value added products of the company are appreciated in overseas market.

Continuous adoption of technology and modernization to meet the highest quality parameters.

Popularity of Brand.

Increasing usage of edible oils in India with growing incomes.

Soya beans hold a very important position in the Indian agriculture and economy.

Acceptability of soybeans as a rich source of natural vegetable protein in daily diet.

The Company as a part of its growth strategy has plans to expand its portfolio of value added products.

The Company will leverage its core strength of manufacturing its soya based food ingredients in high hygienic

environments to ensure food safety. This will widen the scope of product application in unexplored food industry and

nutrition business.

The Company will grow into new territories with new product lines and geographical expansion.

Company has the advantages of established brand for its Soya refined oil with strong marketing network. Company is

capturing these opportunities through continuous evolution of its product range, packaging – by investing in new

packaging innovations, deepening its distribution network and reach, creating awareness about its products through

judicious use of media and other consumer connect activities.

The industry is largely dependent on vagaries of monsoon. There is continuous challenge of disparity in crushing

margins between meal oil and seed. The wide and sudden fluctuations in seed prices are the major concerns for the

industry.

�

�

�

�

�

�

�
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Government policies with regard to import and export influence the market. High volatility of currency exchange

rates and seed price associated with speculation is also a risk as it directly affects business margins.

Company has achieved total turnover of Rs. 360.16 crores (previous year 312.83 crores) including exports of Rs. 67.83

crores (previous year Rs. 61.57 crores). Profit before interest, depreciation and taxes was Rs.16.02 crores (previous

year Rs. 15.67 crores). Finance cost was Rs. 4.55 crore (previous year Rs. 4.68 crores). The profit after depreciation &

tax was Rs. 6.29 crores (previous year Rs. 5.76 crores). During the year company repaid term loan of Rs. 3.83 crores

and balance outstanding loan is Rs. 3.70 crores.

In line with overall growth objective and strengthening of infrastructure base, the company continues to invest in

Information Technology (IT) viz. SAP Enterprising Resource Planning System, CRM, HRM, and Sales Force Mobility for

leveraging its business opportunities

This helps in improvements in operational efficiency and cost management.

The company views these investments as a strategic tool to enhance its operational efficiencies.

The Company has a well established framework of internal controls in all areas of its operations, including suitable

monitoring procedures and competent personnel. In addition to statutory audit, the financial controls of the

Company are reviewed by the Internal Auditors, who report their findings to the Audit Committee of the Board. The

Audit Committee is headed by an Independent Director and this ensures independence of functions and

transparency of the process of supervision. The Committee meets to review the progress of the internal audit

initiatives, significant audit observations and planning and implementation of follow-up action required.

Human Resources is considered as key to the future growth strategy of the company and looked upon to focus its

efforts to further align human resources policies, processes and initiative to meet its business needs. In order to focus

on keeping employees abreast of technological and technical developments, the company provides opportunity for

training and learning.

The Directors of your Company deeply appreciate the spirit and commitment of its dedicated team of 216 employees

as on 31.03.2016.

Estimates and expectations stated in this Management Discussion and Analysis Report may be “forward-looking

statements” within the meaning of applicable securities, laws and regulations. Actual results could differ materially

from those expressed or implied. Important factors that could make a difference to your Company’s operations

include economic conditions affecting demand/ supply and price conditions in the domestic and international

markets, changes in the Government regulations, tax laws, and other statutes and incidental factors.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

INFORMATION & TECHNOLOGY

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

HUMAN RESOURCES AND INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
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Independent Auditors Report to the Members of Kriti Nutrients Limited

To,

The Members,

Kriti Nutrients Limited

34, Siyaganj, Indore (M.P.)

Report on the Financial Statements:

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED

March 31, 2016,

March 31, 2016

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements:

Auditor’s Responsibility:

Opinion:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of (“the Company”), which

comprise the Balance Sheet as at and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for

the year ended , and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013

(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial

position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles

generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of

the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other

irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that

were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the

preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are

required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act.

Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk

assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the financial

statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in place an adequate financial controls

system over financial reporting and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the

accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on the financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial

statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
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conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st

March, 2016, and its profit and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government

of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the a statement on the

matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2) As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it

appears from our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report

are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2016 taken on

record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2016 from being

appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in .

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and

according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial

statements as Refer Note 27.3 to the financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there

were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 000939C

Partner

M. No. : 075344

Date :

Place : Indore

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

“Annexure A”

“Annexure B”

FOR: R. S. BANSAL & COMPANY

VIJAY BANSAL

May 12 ,2016
th
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“Annexure A” to the Auditor’s Report as referred in paragraph first of our report of even date to the members

of Kriti Nutrients Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016

1. Fixed Assets:

2. Inventories:

3. Loans Granted:

4. Loan, Investment and Guarantees:

5. Public Deposit:

6. Cost Records:

st

As required by the Companies Auditor’s Report Order, 2016 issued by the Central Government in terms of 143

of the Companies Act, 2013, we further report that :-

a. As informed to us, the Company has maintained proper records, on yearly basis, showing full

particulars, including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets. The entire records have been

maintained on computer system through SAP.

b. As informed to us, the management of the Company has physically verified fixed assets at reasonable

intervals, which in our opinion is reasonable, having regard to the size of the Company and nature of

its assets and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

c. The land of the Company for the factory is on lease for 99 years since 1984 from Madhya Pradesh

Audyogik Kendra Vikas Nigam (Indore) Limited. The lease agreement is executed in the name of the

Company.

a. The inventory of the Company has been physically verified during the year by the management at

regular intervals.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the procedure of

physical verification of inventories followed by the management is reasonable and adequate in

relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its business.

c. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has

maintained proper records of its inventories. No material discrepancies have been noticed on physical

verification of stock.

As per information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any

secured/unsecured loans to companies, firms, LLP or other parties covered in the register maintained

under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

As per information and explanation given to us, the Company has not granted any loan or given any

guarantee on such loans covered under section 185 and neither it has made any investment covered

under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company neither

accepted nor invited any deposits from public within the provisions of Section 73 to 76 of Companies

Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder. It is further informed by the Company that no order has been

passed by Company Law Tribunal, National Company Law Tribunal, Reserve Bank of India or any other

Tribunal in this regards.

As explained and informed to us, the Company is required to maintain cost records as specified by the

Central Government under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the oil refining

activities of the company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the

company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of the cost

records to which said rules are made applicable and we are of the opinion that theprima facie,
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prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have however, not made

detailed examinations of the records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or

complete.

:

a. According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has been generally regular in

depositing undisputed dues relating to Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,

Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duties of Customs, Duties of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material

statutory dues applicable to it with appropriate authorities. There are no undisputed statutory dues

payable which are outstanding as at March 31, 2016 for a period of more than 6 months from the date

they became payable.

b. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Sales Tax, Income Tax,

Customs Duty, Excise Duty & cess which have not been deposited on account of any dispute, except

the following –

7. Statutory Dues

Sr.

No

Name of the Statute

(Nature of the Dues)

Forum where Matter is

Pending

Period to which

the amounts relates

Amounts

(in Rs.)

1. M.P. COMMERCIAL TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2004-05 21,55,460

2. M.P. COMMERCIAL TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2005-06 81,41,497

3. M.P. COMMERCIAL TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2005-06 8,95,411

4. M.P. COMMERCIAL TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2006-07 8,70,630

5. M.P. COMMERCIAL TAX ADDITIONAL COMMISSIONER 2013-14 5,08,767

6. CENTRAL SALES TAX M. P. HIGH COURT, JABALPUR 2006-07 1,14,25,030

7. CENTRAL SALES TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2005-06 32,699

8. CENTRAL SALES TAX ADDITIONAL COMMISSIONER 2013-14 1,02,838

9. ENTRY TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2004-05 7,99,081

10. ENTRY TAX SALES TAX COMMISSIONER 2005-06 50,31,195

11. ENTRY TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2006-07 5,13,848

12. ENTRY TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2007-08 18,22,609

13. ENTRY TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2008-09 3,90,591

14. ENTRY TAX APPELLATE BOARD, BHOPAL 2008-09 19,71,548

8. Default in repayment of dues to Financial Institutions, Banks, Government or debenture holders: -

9. Utilization of Term Loans and Initial/Further Public offer:

10. Fraud Noticed or Recorded:

11. Managerial Remuneration

Based on our audit and on the information and explanations given by the management, we are of the

opinion that the Company has not defaulted in repayment of any loan from Financial Institutions,

Government or Banks. No debentures have been issued by the Company till date and hence there are no

debenture holders present.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on documents provided to us, term

loans availed by the Company were, prima-facie, applied by the Company for the purposes for which the

loans were obtained. However, there were no new term loans that had been obtained during the year and

neither any money was raised by way of further public offers.

To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, no

fraud by the Company and any fraud on the Company by its employees was noticed or reported during the

period.

:

According to the information and explanation given to us, and based on documents provided to us, the
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managerial remuneration has been provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the

provisions of section 197 read with schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

As explained and informed to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence this clause is not

applicable on it.

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on document provided to us, all

transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 & section 188 of the Companies Act

2013 and the details of the same have been duly disclosed in the financial statements as required by the

applicable accounting standards.

:

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made any

preferential allotment/private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debenture during the year.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with Directors or Persons connected with him.

The Company is a manufacturing concern and therefore, the Company is not required to be registered

under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of IndiaAct,1934.

12. Nidhi Company:

13. Transaction with Related Parties:

14. Preferential Allotment/Private Placement

15. Non-Cash Transactions:

16. Registration with Reserve Bank of India:

FOR: R. S. BANSAL & COMPANY

VIJAY BANSAL

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 000939C

Partner

M. No. : 075344

Date : May 12 ,2016

Place : Indore

th
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“Annexure B” to the Auditor’s Report as referred in paragraph first of our report of even date to the members of

Kriti Nutrients Limited for the year ended 31 March 2016.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,

2013 (“the Act”)

Kriti Nutrients Limited

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditors’ Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

st

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of (“the Company”) as

of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that

date.

The Company’s management is responsible for laying down and maintaining internal financial controls based on the

internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by

the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and

efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the

prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, to the extent applicable to an

audit of internal financial controls and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting (the “Guidance Note”), both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and

the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over

financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,

assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness

of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including

the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial

reporting includes those policies and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and

directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Opinion

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and

not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future

periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial

reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2016,

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

FOR: R. S. BANSAL & COMPANY

VIJAY BANSAL

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 000939C

Partner

M. No. : 075344

Date : May 12 ,2016

Place : Indore

th
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KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2016

Particulars Note No.
As at

31.03.2016

As at

31.03.2015

( Rs. in Lacs)

Vijay Bansal

Partner

M.No. 075344

For and on belhalf of the Board of Directors

Shiv Singh Mehta

(Managing Director)

DIN 00023523

Purnima Mehta

(Director)

DIN 00023632

Alheena Khan

(Company Secretary)

S.C. Jajoo

(Chief Financial officer)

Place: Indore

Date:- 12th May, 2016

Chartered Accountants
FRN 000939C

For R.S. Bansal & Company

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

(1) Shareholder’s Funds

(a) Share Capital 2 501.04 501.04

(b) Reserves and Surplus 3 2766.98 2160.56

(a) Long-Term Borrowings 4 70.00 377.52

(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 5 519.91 526.46

(c) Other Long Term Liabilities 6 154.31 155.78

(a) Short-Term Borrowings 7 1055.69 1276.37

(b) Trade Payables 8 1548.38 1929.18

(c) Other Current Liabilities 9 602.04 525.13

(d) Short-Term Provisions 10 329.09 348.81

(a) Fixed Assets

(i) Tangible Assets 11 3428.02 3415.36

(ii) Intangible Assets 12 23.79 36.00

(iii) Capital Work-In-Progress 7.01 34.59

(b) Non-Current Investments 13 8.41 8.41

(c) Long Term Loans and Advances 14 47.83 41.79

(d) Other non-current assets 15 19.24 6.44

(a) Inventories 16 2443.70 2642.77

(b) Trade Receivables 17 507.36 716.74

(c) Cash and Bank Balances 18 182.31 185.73

(d) Short-Term Loans and Advances 19 426.75 263.26

(e) Other Current Assets 20 453.02 449.76

Significant accounting policies 1

Other Notes to the accounts 26-43

(2) Non-Current Liabilities

(3) Current Liabilities

Total 7547.44 7800.85

II. ASSETS

(1) Non-Current Assets

(2) Current Assets

Total 7547.44 7800.85

As per Our Report of Even Date Attached
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KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2016

Particulars Note No.

( Rs. in Lacs)

For the Year

31.03.2016

For the Year

31.03.2015

Vijay Bansal

Partner

M.No. 075344

For and on belhalf of the Board of Directors

Shiv Singh Mehta

(Managing Director)

DIN 00023523

Purnima Mehta

(Director)

DIN 00023632

Alheena Khan

(Company Secretary)

S.C. Jajoo

(Chief Financial officer)

Place: Indore

Date:- 12th May, 2016

Chartered Accountants
FRN 000939C

For R.S. Bansal & Company

As per Our Report of Even Date Attached

Revenue from operations 21 35895.96 31114.57

less: Excise Duty 103.65 74.69

35792.31 31039.88

Other Income 22 120.99 169.12

Cost of materials consumed 31190.16 27176.14

Purchase of Stock in Trade 134.18 112.37

Changes in inventories of finished goods,

work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade (99.39) (475.01)

Employee benefit expense 23 566.62 554.43

Financial costs 24 455.99 468.38

Depreciation and amortization expense 11-12 229.02 222.95

Other expenses 25 2516.45 2262.88

Exceptional and Extraordinary 920.27 886.86

Prior period Expenses 2.44 10.30

Profit Before Extraordinary Items and Tax 917.83 876.56

Extraordinary Items 0.00 0.00

Tax expense:

Current tax 295.00 271.10

Excess Provision of Earlier Year Written Back 0.00 (5.44)

Deferred tax (6.55) 35.04

(1) Basic 1.26 1.15

(2) Diluted 1.26 1.15

Total Revenue 35913.30 31209.00

Expenses:

Total Expenses 34993.03 30322.14

Profit Before

Profit Before Tax 917.83 876.56

Profit/(Loss) for the year 629.38 575.86

Earning per equity share:

Items & Tax

Significant accounting policies 1

Other Notes to the accounts 26-43
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Particulars
Year Ended 31.03.2016

Amount Amount

Year Ended 31.03.2015

Amount Amount

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED
Cash Flow As On 31st March 2016

( Rs. in Lacs)

Cash Flow From Operating Activities

Net Profit before Tax 917.83 876.56

Adjustments for :

Cash Operating Profit before working capital changes 1398.77

(664.23)

Net Cash From Operating Activities (A) 584.54

Cash Flow From Investing Activities

Net Cash Used In Investing Activities (B) (129.93)

Cash Flow From Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease)  in  Long Term Borrowings (307.52) (456.90)

Depreciation 229.02 222.95

Dividend Received (0.12) (0.13)

(Profit)/ Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 (9.00)

Financial Income (120.87) (159.99)

Financial Expense 455.99 564.02               468.38 522.21

Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables (380.80) 446.48

Increase / (Decrease)  in Short term Provisions (254.42) (147.48)

Increase / (Decrease)  in Other Current Liabilities 76.90 18.21

(Increase) / Decrease in Inventories 199.07 (656.02)

(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables 258.80 (300.68)

(Increase) / Decrease in Long term Loans & Advances (6.04) 21.28

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Non Current Assets (12.80) 9.09

(Increase) / Decrease in Short term Loans & Advances (163.49) (30.68)

(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets 67.95 (24.42)

Tax Paid (71.21) (150.00)

Dividend Income 0.12 0.13

Financial Income 120.87 159.99

Sale Proceed Of Fixed Assets (Net) 0.00 9.00

Purchase of Fixed Assets (201.88) (262.14)

DecreaseInvestmentinFixedDepositshavingmaturityofmorethan12months 5.73 (36.92)

(Increase) / Decrease in Non Current Investment (2.07) -

Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 0.00 0.00

Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (307.52) (456.90)

Increase / (Decrease)  in Other Long Term Liability (1.47) (0.82)

Increase / (Decrease)  in  Short Term Borrowings (220.68) 526.73

Dividend Paid on Equity Shares (110.23) (50.10)

Dividend Distribution Tax Paid (22.44) (8.52)

Financial Expenses (455.99) (468.38)

1481.85

(214.83)

1195.81

(77.23)
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Net Cash Used In Financing Activities (C)

Cash and Cash equivalents - Closing - 31st March

Net Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents (A + B + C)

Add :Cash and cash equivalents - Opening - 1st April

(0.25) (3.38)

4.12 7.50

(1118.33) (457.99)

4.37 4.12

Year Ended 31.03.2016

Amount Amount

Year Ended 31.03.2015

Amount Amount

( Rs. in Lacs)

FOOTNOTE TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT:

1. Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents are produced as under:

Particulars

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Total of Cash & Cash Equivalent 4.37 4.12

Particulars 2015-16 2014-15

Cash and Bank Balances classified as Current Assets 182.31 185.73

Balances with Banks

Current Account 0.79 0.70

Fixed Deposit having original maturity 3 month or less - -

Cheques, Draft on hand - -

Cash on hand 3.58 3.42

Cash and cash equivalents as above 4.37 4.12

Add : Other Cash and Bank Balances

Unpaid Dividend 10.26 8.19

Fixed Deposit account maturity more than 3 month & less than 12 month 167.68 173.42

2. Reconciliation of Cash and Cash Equivalents with Cash and Bank  as per the Balance Sheet Balances:

( Rs. in Lacs)

( Rs. in Lacs)

2015-16 2014-15

Particulars

Significant accounting policies.
Other Notes to the accounts

1
26-43

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED
Cash Flow As On 31st March 2016

Vijay Bansal

Partner

M.No. 075344

For and on belhalf of the Board of Directors

Shiv Singh Mehta

(Managing Director)

DIN 00023523

Purnima Mehta

(Director)

DIN 00023632

Alheena Khan

(Company Secretary)

S.C. Jajoo

(Chief Financial officer)

Chartered Accountants
FRN 000939C

For R.S. Bansal & Company

As per Our Report of Even Date Attached
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NOTES - 1
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 31.03.2016

1.2. Significant Accounting Policies

1.1. Corporate Information

1.2.1 Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

1. 2.2 Use of Estimates

1.2.3 Fixed assets and Depreciation

Tangible Assests

Intangible Assets

1.2.4 Impairment of Assets

1.2.5 Investments

1.2.6 Inventories

1. Stores and Spares Parts, etc:

2. Raw Materials:

3. Finished Goods

4. By Products:

1.2.7 Revenue Recognition

(a)

(b)

Kriti Nutrients Ltd., a public limited company domiciled in India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies

Act, 1956 on 24/09/1996 and having its Registered office in Indore (MP). The company’s shares are listed in the Bombay

Stock Exchange (BSE). The Company is in the business of Soya Seed Extraction and Manufacturing & Selling of cooking oil

under its own brand “KRITI”.

The financial statements are prepared and presented under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of

accounting in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India (‘Indian GAAP’) and comply with

the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’), and as specified under

section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 to the

extent applicable.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities

and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from

those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current and future periods.

Fixed assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated depreciation. The cost of fixed assets comprises its

purchase price including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies and any directly, attributable c t of

bringing the asset to the working condition for its intended use.

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method (‘SLM’) over the remaining useful life of the asset - as prescribed

in Schedule II of the Act.

Capital Work-In-Progress includes the cost of fixed assets that are not ready to use at the balance sheet date.

Intangible assets are stated at acquisition cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided on straight line

method (S.L.M.) over the useful life of six years of the assets.

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets

(cash generating unit) may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount

of the asset or a group of assets. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash-

generating unit to which the assets belongs is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its

recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit &

Loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exits, the

recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of

depreciable historical cost.

Investments classified as long term investment are carried at cost. Provision for diminution, if any, shall be made to

recognize a decline other than temporary, in the value of the investment.

At Cost, with moving average price on FIFO basis.

At cost, with moving average price on FIFO basis.

: At estimated cost or net realizable value (whichever is lower).

At net realizable value.

Cost comprises all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their

present location and condition.

Revenue from sale of products is recognized on transfer of all significant risk and rewards of ownership of products to

the customers, which is generally on dispatch of goods. Sales are stated exclusive of Value Added Tax.

Dividend incomeis recognized when theright to receivethedividend is established.

os
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Export incentives receivable are accrued for when the right to receive the credit is established and there is no

significant uncertainty regarding the ultimate collection of export proceeds.

:

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short-term

employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and short term compensated absences, etc. are recognized in the

period in which the employee renders the related services.

:

: The Employee State Insurance Scheme and Contributory Provident Fund administered by

Provident Fund Commissioner are defined contribution plans. The Company’s contribution paid/payable under the

schemes is recognized as expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which the employee renders

the related service.

: The Company has taken Group Gratuity and Cash Accumulation Policy issued by the Life

Insurance Corporation of India (LIC). The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans is

determined based on actuarial valuation as advised by LIC, using the Projected Unit Credit method, which recognizes

each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit

separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates used for

determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plans, are as advised by LIC.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Transactions denominated in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of

transactions. Exchange differences arising on foreign exchange transactions settled during the year are recognized in

the Statement of Profit & Loss of the year.

Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-end, are translated at the

closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences are recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Realized gain or loss on cancellation of forward exchange contract is recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss for

the year.

Gain / Loss on exchange difference on pending forward exchange contract which are yet to be executed are measured

on the basis of difference between spot rate at year end and with forward contract exchange rate (premium adjusted)

of respective date through “Exchange Fluctuation Hedge Reserve” carved out of free reserve in Balance Sheet.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or productions of a qualifying asset

are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. The amount of borrowing cost eligible for capitalization is determined in

accordance with Accounting Standard (AS) 16- Borrowing Costs issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India (ICAI) and as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) read with rule 7 of the Companies

(Accounts) Rules, 2014.

Tax expenses for the current year comprises of current tax, deferred tax. Current tax is the amount of tax payable on

the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax Act, 1961. Deferred tax

is recognized, on timing differences between the taxable income and accounting income that originate in one period

and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.

Basic and diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to equity shareholders for the

year, by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Provisions comprise liabilities of uncertain timing or amount. Provisions are recognized when the company recognizes

it has a present obligation as a result of past events, it is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be

required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

Disclosures for contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may, but

probably will not, require an outflow of resources when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect

of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Loss contingencies arising from claims, litigation, assessment, fines, penalties, etc. are recorded when it is probable

that a liability has been incurred and the amount can be reasonably estimated.

(c)

1.2.8 Employee Benefits

(a) Short Term Employee Benefits

(b) Post- Employment Benefits

(i) Defined Contribution Plans

(ii) Defined Benefit Plans

1.2.9 Foreign Currency Transactions

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

1.2.10 Borrowing Costs

1.2.11 Taxation

1.2.12 Earning Per Share

1.2.13 Provisions for Contingencies

(a)

(b)

(c)

Annual Report 2015-16

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED

45



Particulars As at

31.03.2016

As at

31.03.2015

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED
NOTES Forming Part of The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss

( Rs. in Lacs)
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NOTE NO. 2 SHARE CAPITAL

2

NOTE NO.

.1 AUTHORIZED

2.1.1 100000000 Equity Shares of Re. 1/- each 1000.00 1000.00

2.2  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP

2.2.2 Reconciliation of shares

2.2.2.1

2.2.2.2

2.2.2.3

501.04 501.04

2.3 SHAREHOLDER HOLDING MORE THAN 5 % OF SHARES OF THE

COMPANY AND ITS PERCENTAGE

2.3.1 SAKAM TRADING  PRIVATE LIMITED ( HOLDING COMPANY )

2.3.2 CHETAK BUILDERS PRIVATE LIMITED  ( ASSOCIATE COMPANY )

3 RESERVES & SURPLUS

3.1 RESERVES

3.1.1 General Reserve

Closing Balance 650.00 550.00

3.2 Capital Reserve

3.3 Contingency Reserve(Free Reserve)

25.00 25.00

3.4 Exchange Fluctuation Reserve

3.5 SURPLUS

3.5.1

2.2.1 50103520 equity shares of Rs 1/- each fully paid up. Out of which 49603520 shares issued on 27.01.2010 as fully paid up on account of

scheme of arrangement as approved by The Hon’ble High Court of M.P.Indore Bench

The company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.1 each holder of the equity share as referred in

the records of the company as of date of the shareholder meeting is referred to one vote in respect of each share held for all matter

submitted to vote in the shareholder meeting.

The company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the

shareholders in the Annual General Meeting. In the event of liquidation of the company the holders of equity shares will be entitled to

receive any of the remaining assets of the company after distribution of all preferential amounts.

Pursuant to the Hon’ble High Court of M.P. order dated 1.11.2011 approving the scheme of amalgamation of promoter group companies viz Kriti

Corporate Services Pvt Ltd., Kriti Auto Accessories Private Ltd., Kasta Pipes Pvt. Ltd. and Shipra Pipes Pvt Ltd. with Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd., the

Shareholding of the above transferor companies are vested in Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd. Thus Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd. becomes holding company

w.e.f.27.02.2012ofKritiNutrientsLtd.

Opening Balance of 50103520 equity shares of Rs. 1/- each 501.04 501.04

Issued during the year NIL 0.00 0.00

Closing Balance 50103520 equity shares of Rs. 1/- each 501.04

No. of Shares 26099473 26099473

% of Shares 52.09% 52.09%

No. of Shares 4608158 4608158

% of Shares 9.20% 9.20%

550.00 500.00

Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit & Loss 100.00 50.00

( Arosen due to scheme of arrangement as approved by the

Hon’ble High Court of M.P., Indore Bench) 295.56 295.56

3.3.1 Opening Balance 25.00 25.00

Add: Transfer from Statement of Profit & Loss 0.00 0.00

65.85 16.45

Statement of Profit & Loss

3.5.1.1 Opening Balance 1273.55 812.58

3.5.1.2 Less Carrying amount of Assets whose remaining useful

life is Nil as per Schedule II of Companies Act, 2013 0.00 4.77

3.5.1.3 Add Profit & Loss during the period 629.38 575.86

1383.67

501.04

1902.93



KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED
NOTES Forming Part of The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss

As at

31.03.2016

As at

31.03.2015

31.03.2016

As at

31.03.2016

As at

31.03.2015

Term of Repayment of Long Term Borrowings

49

COSMOS Bank

COSMOS Bank

72 Monthly Installment 45 31st Dec., 2019 13.00% 70.00 196.57

54 Monthly Installment 10 31st Jan., 2017 13.00% 0.00 180.95

Total 70.00 377.52
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NOTE NO. 7 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
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KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED
NOTES Forming Part of The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss

16 15

NOTE NO. 13 NON- CURRENT INVESTMENT

Non Trade Investment in Equity Instruments

13.1 Unquoted

13.2 Quoted

13.3 SBI Mutual Fund 50000 units of Rs. 10 each

Total 8.41 8.41

NOTE NO. 14 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

14.1

Total 47.83 41.79

NOTE NO. 15 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

19.24 6.44

16  INVENTORIES

Total 2443.70 2642.77

NOTE NO. 17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Total 507.36 716.74

18 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

18.1 Cash & Cash Equivalents

18.2 Other Bank Balances

Total 182.31 185.73

13.1.1 The Cosmos Co-operative Bank Ltd. 1.00 1.00

10000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each ( Prev. Yr. Rs. 1.00 lacs )

13.2.1  I.D.B.I (2880 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 2.34 2.34

(Market Price as on 31.03.2016 Rs. 2.00 lacs ( Yr. Rs. 2.05 lacs))

13.2.2 Reliance Power Ltd (25 shares of Rs. 10/- each) 0.07 0.07

(Market value as on 31.03.2016  Rs .01 lacs ( Yr. Rs. .01 lacs))

Investment in Mutual Fund

5.00 5.00

(Market price as on 31.03.2016 Rs. 8.83 lacs ( Yr.  Rs.9.15 lacs)

(Refer point no.2.5 of Note No.1 )

Security Deposits 47.83 41.79

15.1 Fixed deposit with banks against margin money

16.1 Raw Material 572.86 903.67

16.2 Finished Goods 1494.19 1394.80

16.3 Stores and Spares & others 376.65 344.30

( Mode of valuation of above stocks are as per point no. 2.6  of Notes no 1 )

17.1 Unsecured Considered Good

Over Six months from the date they become due 1.40 12.18

500.95 694.63

17.2 Doubtful

Over Six months from the date they become due (as reduced by Provision of 5.01 9.93

(Refer Note No.33 )

18.1.1 Balances with Banks 0.79 0.70

18.1.2 Cash on hand 3.58 3.42

18.2.1 Unpaid dividend 10.26 8.19

18.2.2 Fixed deposit with banks held as margin money against borrowing 167.68 173.42

( Maturity  less than 12 Months )

Prev.

Prev.

Prev.

(Maturity More than 12 Months) 19.24 6.44

Others

Rs. 11.65 Lacs)

Total

NOTE NO.

NOTE NO.
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NOTE NO.

NOTE NO.

NOTE NO.

NOTE NO.

NOTE NO.

NOTE NO.

NOTE NO.

19 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

19.1 Unsecured, Considered good

Total 426.75 263.26

20 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Total 453.02 449.76

21  REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

21.3 Less : Excise Duty 103.65 74.69

Total 35792.31 31039.88

22 OTHER INCOME

Total 120.99 169.12

23  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

Total 566.62 554.43

24 FINANCIAL COST

Total 455.99 468.38

25 OTHER EXPENSES

(I) Manufacturing Expenses

Sub Total (I) 1525.98 1424.55

426.75 263.26

Advances recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received

20.1 Sundry Deposits 14.39 15.29

20.2 Advance Tax/ Tax Deducted at source 212.52 202.61

20.3 CENVAT 81.18 47.43

20.4 Accrued Interest/ Income 137.82 184.43

20.5 Insurance Claim Receivable 7.11 0.00

21.1 Sale of Products 35531.76 30780.92

21.2 Other operating revenues 364.20 333.65

35895.96 31114.57

22.1 Interest Income 20.03 20.60

22.2 Dividend Income 0.12 0.13

22.3  Net gain/ (loss )on sale of Investment (Assets) 0.00 9.00

22.4 Other Non-operating Income 12.13 9.66

22.5 Net gain on foreign currency transactions 88.71 129.73

23.1 Salaries & Wages 473.43 442.35

23.1.1 Director Remuneration 26.35 25.95

23.1.2 P.F on Director Remuneration 1.44 1.44

23.2 Contribution to provident and other fund 34.53 53.21

23.3 Staff Welfare Expenses 30.87 31.48

24.1 Interest Expenses 329.25 358.17

24.2 Other Borrowing Cost 126.74 110.21

25.1 Stores and Spares Consumed 190.29 176.63

25.2 Hexane Consumed 44.87 49.89

25.3 Chemicals Consumed 270.10 275.47

25.4 Coal Consumed 367.98 359.37

25.5 Power Charges 387.59 333.82

25.6 Freight & Cartage 104.54 101.80

25.7 Repairs & Maintenance 59.13 27.79

25.8 Insurance Charges 25.74 25.31

25.9 Water Charges 13.37 16.15

25.10 Miscellaneous Manufacturing Expenses 62.37 58.32
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KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED
NOTES Forming Part of The Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss

16 15

(II) Administrative

Auditor’s Remuneration

Sub Total (II) 133.41 101.46

(III) Selling & Distribution

Sub Total (III) 857.06 736.87

TOTAL ( I+II+III ) 2516.45 2262.88

Expenses

Expenses

25.11 Stationery & Printing 2.81 1.74

25.12 Rent, Rates and Taxes 54.60 26.60

25.13 Postage, Telegram and Telephones 13.05 11.34

25.14

25.14.1 Auditor’s Fees 1.74 1.12

25.15 Conveyance Expenses 10.28 11.62

25.16 Legal & Professional Charges 26.01 19.07

25.17 Director’s Meeting Fee 0.31 0.20

25.18 Miscellaneous Expenses 24.19 29.77

25.19 Corporate Social Responsibility 0.42 0.00

25.20 Advertisement & Publicity 17.36 1.88

25.21 Sales Promotion Expenses 132.87 103.80

25.22 Brokerage & Commission 9.59 7.74

25.23 Freight Outward 64.13 48.65

25.24 Sales Tax & Octroi 0.51 0.93

25.25 Export Expenses 567.67 506.17

25.26 Bad Debts 3.19 0.00

25.27 Provision For Doubtfull Debts 3.32 0.00

25.28 Travelling Expenses 58.42 67.70



( Rs. in Lacs)

26. Other Notes to Accounts

26.1

26.2

27. Contingent liabilities

27.1

27.2

27.3

28

29

30.

31.

32

33

34.

(a)

Previous year figure have been reclassified /regrouped wherever necessary.

In the opinion of the Board of Directors of the Company, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a value

realizable in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which they are stated and

provisions for all known liabilities are adequate and not in excess of the amount reasonably necessary.

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account is Rs. 18.83 Lacs net of advance

given (Previous Year Rs. 20.92 Lacs).

Bank has given guarantee on behalf of the Company to various parties to the extent of Rs. 134.69 Lacs (Previous

Year Rs. 134.47 Lacs).

Claims not acknowledge by the company on Commercial tax matters Rs. 346.61 Lacs (Previous Year 341.85

Lacs).

. Company’s Income tax assessments have been completed up to Assessment year 2013-2014, in the opinion of Board of

Director’s provision for income tax made is adequate.

. Unpaid overdue amount due on March 31, 2016 to Micro Small and Medium Enterprises and/or ancillary industrial

suppliers on account of principal together with interest aggregate to Rs. Nil.

This disclosure is given on the basis of the information available with the company regarding the status of the suppliers

as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

The amount of Foreign Exchange Gain/ (Loss) included in the statement of profit & loss is Rs. 88.71 Lacs as gain

(Previous Year Gain Rs. 129.73 Lacs). Current year gain included in Other Income & Previous Year Gain amount is

included in Other Income.

In the opinion of the Board, all the current assets shall be realized, in the ordinary course of business, at the value on

which they are stated.

. Other Long term liabilities includes Dealership deposit from Dealers and based on commercial practice

these are generally not claimed in short term therefore these are treated as long term liability.

. The Company has initiated legal action against certain debtor’s amount outstanding of Rs.16.66 Lacs.

The Company is assured of recovery of the amount on the basis of these legal cases, however a provision of

Rs. 11.65 Lacs (16.66 lacs less 5.01 lacs security deposit) is provided on prudent basis. The provision for

the same is netted off from the amount of debtors.

The disclosure required as per Accounting Standard (AS) 15 “Employees Benefit” issued by the Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India (ICAI) and as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) read with rule 7

of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and based on the report generated by Life Insurance Corporation of India

(LIC) is as under:

The company has taken Group Gratuity and Cash Accumulation Policy issued by the LIC, which is a defined

benefit plan.

Present value of obligations as at beginning of the year 53.14 47.44

Interest Cost 4.25 3.80

Current Service Cost 7.53 6.13

Benefit Paid (4.06) (1.58)

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligations (4.35) (2.65)

Present Value obligations as at end of the year 56.51 53.14

value of plan assets at beginning of the year 64.99 55.45

(b) Table showing changes in present value of obligations as on 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

(c) Table showing changes in the fair value of plan assets as on 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

Fair

Expected return on plan assets 5.20 3.9`

Contribution 0.00 7.22

Benefit Paid (4.06) (1.58)

Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets NIL NIL

Fair Value of the plan assets at the end of the year 66.13 64.99

Annual Report 2015-16

KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED

52



e) Actuarial Gain/Loss recognized as on 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

(f) Expenses recognized in statement of profit and loss 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

(g) Assumption

35.

36. DEFERRED TAX CALCULATIONS

37.

38.

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year-obligation 4.35 2.65

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss for the year-plan assets NIL NIL

Total (Gain)/Loss for the year (4.35) (2.65)

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized for the year (4.35) (2.65)

Current Service Cost 7.53 6.13

Interest cost 4.25 3.79

Expected return on Plan Asset (5.20) (3.90)

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized in the year (4.35) (2.64)

Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit & Loss 2.23 3.38

Discount rate 8% 8%

Salary Escalation 7% 7%

The company has only one Business Segment to be reported namely oil seed extraction and refining, as per

Accounting Standard -17,(earlier being described as Soya Seed Extraction, the present description is a better

description of the business activity)

Diminution in value of equity shares under Note No. 13 has been considered as temporary in nature hence no

provision made in the books of accounts.

The Company has entered into leasing agreement with Chetak Builders Pvt. Ltd. for the lease of Commercial

Premises. The disclosure as per Para 25 of Accounting Standard – 19 “LEASES” is as under:

Note : Assets are taken on lease & lease rentals charged on the basis of agreed terms.

(d) Table showing fair value of plan assets as on 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 64.99 55.45

Actual return on plan assets 5.20 3.91

Contribution 0.00 7.22

Benefit Paid (4.06) (1.58)

Fair Value of the plan assets at the end of the year 66.13 64.99

Funded status 9.62 11.85

Excess of actual over estimated return on plan assets NIL NIL

(Actual Rate of return = estimated rate of return as ARD falls on 31/03/2016)

(

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY/ (ASSETS) Current Year Previous Year

(a)

(b)

(a+b)

WDV of Fixed Assets as per Income Tax Act 1862.74 1807.14

WDV of Fixed Assets as per Companies Act 3451.80 3451.36

Deferred Asset/(Liability) Timing Difference of Depreciation (1589.06) (1644.22)

Deferred Asset/(Liability) Timing Difference of Provison for

Bonus and Leave Encashment 16.58 21.61

Total Deferred Asset/(Liability) on Timing Difference (1572.48) (1622.61)

Closing Balance of Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) (519.91) (526.46)

Less: Opening Balance of Deferred Tax  Asset/ (Liability) (526.46) (493.70)

Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) for the year 6.55 (32.76)

Sr. No. Particulars Current Year Previous Year

a. Not Later than One Year 9.30 8.09

b. Later than One Year Not Later than Five Years 40.00 38.61

c. Lease payment recognized in Profit & Loss A/c for the Period 8.09 8.09
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39. EARNING PER SHARE

The Company’s share capital consists of equity share. The basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated as under:

40.

(a) Name of the related party and description of relationship:

i. Key Management Personnel

ii. Relatives of Key Management Personnel

iii Companies/Entities under the control of Key Management Personnel

In accordance with the Accounting Standard (AS) 18 “Related Party Disclosures” issued by The Institute of Chartered

Accountants of India (ICAI) and as specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) read with rule 7 of

the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the names of the related parties and the relevant disclosure is as under:-

:

Shri Shiv Singh Mehta, Managing Director

Smt. Purnima Mehta, Director

Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta, Executive Director

Shri S.C. Jajoo, Chief Financial Officer

Smt. Alheena Khan, Company Secretary

Smt. Devki Hirawat (Daughter of Managing Director)

Smt. Nidhi Mehta (Wife of Executive Director)

1) Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd. (Holding Company)

2) Kriti Industries (India) Ltd. (Subsidiary of Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd.)

3) Kriti Auto & Engineering Plastics Pvt. Ltd. (Wholly owned subsidiary of Kriti Industries (I) ltd)

4) Chetak Builders Pvt. Ltd. (Subsidiary of Sakam Trading Pvt. Ltd.)

Sr. No. Nature of Transaction Current Year Previous Year

1. Number of Shares 50103520 50103520

2. Profit contribution for Basic EPS (Rs in lacs) 629.38 575.86

3. Extra Ordinary Items (Within the meaning of AS-5, Net Profit or

loss for the period, Prior Period items and Changes in the

Accounting Policies)

4. Basic Earnings Per Share 1.26 1.15

5. Nominal Value Per Share 1 1

Nil Nil

Remuneration

Sale of Consumable Items

of Consumable Items

Sales of export Scheme

Incentive License

Purchase of export scheme

incentive License

Purchase

Purchase of Machinery

Sr.

No.
Nature of Transaction Subsidiary

Key Management

Personnel

Relatives of Key

Management

Personnel

Companies/entities

under the control of

Key Management

Personnel

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

47.12

(37.45)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

294.60

(187.24)

NIL

(NIL)

0.13

(0.28)

132.99

(99.80)

(NIL)

(12.30)

( Rs. in Lacs)

1

2

3

4

5

6
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The following transactions were carried out with the Related Parties in ordinary course of business



*The figures mentioned in the brackets are previous year figures.

Unsecured Loan

Given

Taken

Interest  Given

Interest  Taken

Rent

Sr.

No.
Nature of Transaction Subsidiary

Key Management

Personnel

Relatives of Key

Management

Personnel

Companies/entities

under the control of

Key Management

Personnel

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

(NIL

(NIL)

NIL

(NIL)

14.72

(14.57)

(NIL)

NIL

8.09

(8.09)

( Rs. in Lacs)

7

8

9

10

Value of Import on C.I.F. basis

i. Raw Material

ii. Components & Spare Parts (Chemical)

iii. Capital Goods

Particulars 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Nil

67.57

Nil

Nil

68.69

Nil

a

( Rs. in Lacs)

Value of imported components & spare parts (chemical) consumed & percentage to the total consumption

I. Imported

% of total Spare Parts (Chemical) consumed

ii Indigenous

% of total Spare Parts (Chemical) consumed

b

Expenditure in Foreign currency

i. Interest

ii Commission

iii. Others

Nil

21.87

40.38

Nil

7.31

12.65

d

41.   Additional information required under Para (v) of Revised Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013, is follows:

42.  Auditor's Remuneration

94.11

34.84%

175.99

65.16%

66.69

24.21%

208.78

75.79%

a. Statutory Audit Fees(Including Service Tax) 0.86 0.84

b. Tax Audit Fees(Including Service Tax) 0.28 0.28

c. Certification Charges & Other matters.(Including service tax) 0.60 -

Auditor’s Remuneration 31.03.2016 31.03.2015

Sr.
No.

Earning in foreign Currency

I. Exports on F.O.B. basis 6783.40 6154.47

c

Sr. No.
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43.   Information related to Raw Material & Finished goods ( Rs. in Lacs)

CONSUMPTION

8022.67

(7438.73)

19752.02

(17276.81)

3415.47

(2460.60)

31190.16

(27176.14)

134.18

(112.37)

134.18

(112.37)

PURCHASES

PARTICULARS

RAW MATERIAL

TRADED PRODUCT

SOYABEAN SEED

SOYA CRUDE OIL

OTHERS

TOTAL

SUNFLOWER OIL

TOTAL

SALES

6868.32

(6063.36)

26679.37

(22977.07)

2089.49

(1879.77)

155.13

(119.68)

35792.31

(31039.88)

PARTICULARS

SOYA MEAL

REFINED OIL

OTHERS

SUNFLOWER OIL

TOTAL

MANUFACTURED PRODUCT

TRADED PRODUCT

*The figures mentioned in the brackets are previous year figures.
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Significant accounting policies.
Other Notes to the accounts

1
26-43

Vijay Bansal

Partner

M.No. 075344

For and on belhalf of the Board of Directors

Shiv Singh Mehta

(Managing Director)

DIN 00023523

Purnima Mehta

(Director)

DIN 00023632

Alheena Khan

(Company Secretary)

S.C. Jajoo

(Chief Financial officer)

Chartered Accountants
FRN : 000939C

For R.S. Bansal & Company

As per Our Report of Even Date Attached





PROXY FORM

FORM MGT- 11
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name : KRITI NUTRIENTS LIMITED

CIN : L24132MP1996PLC011245

Regd office : MEHTA CHAMBER, 34 SIYAGANJ, INDORE -452007 (M.P.)

Name of the member (s) :

Registered address :

E-mail Id

:

Folio No/ Client Id :

DP ID :

I/We, being the member (s) of …………. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name : …………………… E-mail Id :

Address : …………………… Signature :…………….,

or failing him

2. Name : …………………… E-mail Id :

Address : …………………… Signature :…………….,

or failing him

Signed this…… day of……… 2016

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48

hours before the commencement of the Meeting.

R.F. No. ___________________________

Mr./Mrs./Miss __________________________________________

(Shareholders’ name in block letters)

(If signed by proxy, his name should be written in block letters)

(Shareholders/proxy’s Signature)

Note:

1. Shareholders / proxy holders are requested to bring the attendance Slips with them when they come to the meeting and hand over them at the

entrance after affixing their signatures on them.

2. If it is intended to appoint a proxy, the form of proxy should be completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at least 48

hours before the Meeting.

ATTENDANCE SLIP

…………….ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON ………………………….

as my/our proxy to attend and vote on a poll for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 20 Annual general meeting of the company, to be held

on the 11 August, 2016 At the Corporate Support Center, 4 Floor Chetak Chamber, 14 RNT Marg, Indore (M.P.) at 5:00P.M. and at any

adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

th

th th

I/We certify that I/We am/are registered shareholder / proxy for the registered shareholder of the company.

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 20 Annual General meeting of the company at the Corporate Support Center, 4 Floor Chetak Chamber,

14 RNT Marg, Indore (M.P.) at 5:00P.M of the company on Thursday 11 August, 2016.

th th

th

Sr. No. Resolutions

1. Consider and adopt Audited Statement of accounts, Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditor.

2. To Confirm the payment of Interim Dividend of Rs. 0.12 per equity shares.

3. Re-appointment of Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta.

4. Re-appointment of Auditor.

5. Ratification of remuneration of Cost Auditor.

6. Re-appointment to Shri Shiv Singh Mehta as Managing Director for the further term of 3 years.

7. Re-appointment to Shri Saurabh Singh Mehta as Whole time Director for the further term of 3 years.

8. Adoption of New set of Articles of Association of the Company.



ROUTE MAPTO THEAGM VENUE

VENUE: Chetak Chambers, 04th Floor, 14 R.N.T. Marg, Indore (M.P.) 452001

LANDMARK: NEXT TO DAWA BAZAR

DISTANCE FROM INDORE JUNCTION TOAGM VENUE: 1 KM (by vehicle)




